
CITY OF EUNICE, LOUISIANA 

Financial Report 

Year Ended Junc 30, 2023 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Page 
Independent Auditor's Report 1 - 4 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Staternent of net position 
Statement ofactivities 

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Balance sheet - governrnental kind 
Reconciliation ofthe governmental funds balance sheet 

to the statement of net position 
Statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in 

fund balances - governmental funds 
Reconciliation of the statement of revenues, expenditures, 

and changes in fund balances of govemrnental funds to 
the staternent ofactivities 

Staternent of net position - proprietary fund 
Statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in fund 

net position - proprietary Rind 

Statement of cash flow - proprietary fund 

Statement of fiduciary net position - fiduciary fund 
Statement of changes in ficuciary net position 

6 
7 and 8 

10 

I 1 

12 

13 
14 

15 
16 and 17 

18 
19 

Notes to basic financial statements 20-75 

REQUI RED SUP P LEM EN TARY IN FORMATION 

Budgetary comparison schedules: 

General hind 77 

Sales tax special revenue fiind 78 

St. Landry & Acadia Parish Fire District special revenue fund 79 

Schedule of Employer's Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability 80 and 81 
Schedule of Employer's Pension Contributions 82 and 83 

Notes to Required Supplementary Information 84 and 85 



OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

Nonmajor governmental funds - 

Balance sheet 

Statement ofrevenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances 

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

Combining balance sheet - Special Revenue Funds 

Combining statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes 

in fund balances - Special Revenue Funds 

NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS 

Combining balance sheet - Capital Pr€ject Funds 

Combining statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes 

in fund balances - Capital Project Funds 

ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

Statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position - Utility Fund 

RELATED REPORTS 

Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financ ial Statements 

Performed in Accordance with Governmew Audiiing Sicmdards 

Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance for Each Major Program 

and on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform 

Guidance 

Schedule of Expend itures ofrederal Awards 

Schedule of F ind ings and Responses 

Schedule of Prior Years Findings and Questioned Costs 

Schedule ofCornpensation Paid to Council Members 

Schedule ofCompensation, Benefits and Other Payments to Agency Head 

or Chief Executive Officer 

Page 

89 

90 

92 

93 

95 

96 

98 

100 and 101 

102 - 104 

105 

106 - 108 

109 and 110 

111 

112 

JudicialSystem Funding Schedule - Receiving Entity 113 



VIGE, TUJAGUE e:;) NOEL 
A CORPORATION OF CERTIFIED PUEILIC ACCOUNTANTS 

15 N. 2fto STREET 
P. O 8OX 1006 

EUNICE, LOUISIANA 70535 
SHIRLEY VIGE, JR., C.PA. TELEPHt}iV£. 
FRANK G. TUJAGUE, 337-457-9324 
DOMINIQUE M. NOEL. C.PA £A%: 

 

337-457-8743 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

The Honorable Mayor Scott Fontenot 
and Members of the Council 
City of Eunice, Louisiana 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinions 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, and each major fund of the City of Eunice, Louisiana as of and for the year ended June 30, 2023, and 
the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City of Eunice, Louisiana's basic 
financial staternents as listed in the table of contents. 

in our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all rnaterial respects, the respective 
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and each major fund of the City of 
Eunice, Louisiana, as of June 30, 2023, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, 
cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 

Basis for Opinions 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 
Auditor's Responsibi]ities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be 
independent of the City of Eunice, Louisiana and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the 
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 



Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Manageinent is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, 
eonsidered in thc aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City of Eunice, Louisiana's ability to continue 
as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known 
information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinions. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level o fs assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepteol auditing standards and Government Auditing 
Standards-  will always detect a material misstaternent when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting frorn fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery., intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are 
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence 
the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial staternents. 

ln performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing 
Standards, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• klentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include 
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 

• Obtain art understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the City of Eunice, Louisiana's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates rrtade by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise 
substantial doubt about the City of Eunice, Louisiana's ability to continue as a going concern for a 
reasonable period of time, 

We are required to cornmunicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that 
we ,identified during the audit. 
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Required Supplementary Infortnation 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the budgetary comparison 
inforrnation, schedule of employer's share of net pension liability, and schedule of employer pension 
contributions on pages 77-85 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the 
responsibility of managernent and, a!though not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Goverrunental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essentia] part of financial reporting for 
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have 
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United Stales of America, which consistcd of inquiries of management about 
the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency vvith management's 
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of 
the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because 
the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

The City of Eunice, Louisiana has not presented management's discussion and analysis that accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for 
placing the basic financial staternents in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Our opinion 
on the basic financial statements is not affected by this missing information. 

Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the City of Eunice, Louisiana's basic financial statements, The accompanying combining fund financial 
statements, the schedule of compensation, benefits, and other payments to agency head, the judicial system 
funding schedule, and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title, 2 U.S. Code of 
Federal Regulations Par/ 200, Untforin Administration .Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit` Requirements 
for Federal Awards, and other schedules, as listed in the table of contents, are presented for purposes of 
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the 
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information, has been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records u.sed to 
prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themseives, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of Arnerica. ln our 
opinion, the combining fund financial statements, the schedule of compensation, benefits, and other payments to 
agency head, the judicial system funding schedule, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards, and other 
schedules, as listed in the table of contents, are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic 
financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

fn accordance with Government Auditing Siandards, we have a]so issued our report dated Decernber 19,2023, on 
our consideration of the City of Eunice, Louisiana's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of 
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. 
The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope o f our testing o f internal control over financial reporting 
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and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of 
Eunice, Louisiana's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral, part of 
an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering City of Eunice, 
Louisiana's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

LT I 

Vige, Tujague & Noe 
Eunice, Louisiana 
December 19, 2023 
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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CITY OF EUNICE, 

Statement of 
June 30. 

Assets: 

LOU1SIANA 
Net Position 

2023 
Governmental 

Activities 
Business-Type 

Activities Total 

   

Cash and cash equivalents $ 8,535,00 l $ 193,559 $ 8,728,560 
Investments, at cost 500,000 

 

500,000 
Receivables (net of allowance for uncoHectibles): 

   

Accounts 277,263 482,607 759,870 
Taxes 614,169 

 

614,169 
Grants receivable l 19,875 

 

119,875 
Due from other funds 

 

73,046 73,046 
Prepaid Items 175,810 44,010 219,820 
Restricted assets: 

   

Cash and cash equivalents 

 

356,591 356,591 
Capital assets: 

   

Depreciable (net) 11,702,947 5,184,778 16,887,725 
Non-depreciable 1,358,665 

 

1,358,665 
Right of use assets (net) 903,452 64,067 967,519 

Total assets 24,?87,182 6,398,658 30,585,840 
Deferred Outflows of Resources 

Deferred outflows related to pensions 3,674,687 368.490 4,043,177 

Liabilhies: 

   

Accounts payable 787,2.02 *17,260 864,4(52 
Accrued liabilities 120,169 53,980 174,149 
Due to other funds 73,046 

 

73,046 
Compensated absences payable 

 

17,858 17,858 
Payable from restricted assets - 

Customers' deposits 

 

417,765 417,765 
Non-current liabilities 

   

Due within one year: 

   

Note payable 68,531 

 

68,531 
Lease liability 210,130 33,657 243,787 

Due in more than one year: 

   

Compensated absences 160,104 6,275 166,379 
Net pension liability 9,213,848 810,006 10,023,854 
Note payable 221,6-64 

 

221,664 
Lease liability 648,921 22,649 671,570 

Total liabilities: 11,503,615 1,439,450 12,943,065 

Deferred lnflows or Resources 
Deferred inflows related to pensions 896,172 143,895 1,040,067 

Net Position: 

   

Investment in capital, net of related debt 12,771,417 5,184,778 17,956,195 
Restricted for prepaid items 175,810 

 

175,810 
Unrestricted 2,514,855 (975) 2,513,880 

Total net position $ 15,462,082 5,183,803 $ 20,645,885 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of The basic financial statements. 
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CITY OF EUNICE, LOUISIANA 
Staternent of Activities 

Year Ended June 30, 2023 

Activities: Expenses 

 

Program Revenues 

 

Fees, Fines, 
and Charges 
for Services 

Operating 
Grants and 

Contributions 

Capital 
Grants and 

Contrbutions 
Government activities: 

    

General government $ 3,946,276 $ 598,518 $2,821,645 

 

Public safety: 

    

Poiice 2,011,019 30,093 

  

Fire 1,889,029 

   

Streets 2.229,353 

   

Culture and recreation 2,046,235 265.661 

  

Sanitation 89,916 

   

A irport 126,011 

  

586,570 
lnterest 59,129 

   

Total government activities 12,396,968 894,272 2,821,645 586,570 

Business type activities: 

    

Gas 1,793,323 1,642,043 

  

Sewer 1,874,106 1,280,865 

  

Total business-type activities 3,667,430 2,922,908 

  

Total $16,064,398 $3,8l7,180 $2,821,645 $ 586,570 

General Revenues: 
Taxes - 

Property taxes, levied for general purpose 
Sales and use taxes, levied R:ir genera] purposes 
Payrnent in lieu oftaxes 
Franchise and chain store taxes 

Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets 
lnterest and investment earnings 
Miscellaneous 
Nonemployer pension contribution 
Transfers 

Total general revenues and transfers 

Change in net assets 

Net position - June 30, 2022 

Net position - June 30, 2023 
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Net (Expense) Revenues and 

Changes in Net Assets 

Governmental Business-Type 

Activities Activities Total 

$ (526,113) $ 

(1,980,926) 

(1,889,029) 

(2,229.353) 

(1,780,574) 

(89,916) 

460,559 

(59,129) 

(8,094,48 I ) 

$ (526,113) 

(1,980,926) 

(1,889,029) 

(2,229,353) 

(1,780,574) 

(89,916) 

460,559 

(59,129) 

(8,094,481) 

(151.280) (151,280) 

(593,24 l ) (593,241) 

  (744,522) (744,522)      

(8,094,481} (744,522) (8,839.003) 

123,028 

7,077,602 

8,000 

1,466,834 

27,585 

28,732 

161,054 

207,517 

(646,653) 

8,453,699 

359,218  

123,028 

7,077,602 

8,000 

1,466,834 

27,585 

2,728 31,460 

161,054 

10,630 218,147 

646,653 

660,011 9,113,710 

(84,51 1) 274,707 

15,102,864 5,268,314 20,371,178 

$ 15,462,082 $ 5,183,803 $20,645,885 

The accompanyiniz notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements. 
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CITY OF EUNICE, LOUISIANA 

Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds 

June 30..2023 

A SSETS 

General 

Fund 

Sales Tax 

Fund 

St. Landry & 

A cad ia Paeis h 

Fire District 

Other 

Governmental 

Funds Total 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,026.867 5 6.230,404 $ 147,998 $ 129,732 $ 8,535,001 

Investments, at cost 

 

500,000 

  

500,000 

Receivables 

(net of allowance for uncollectibles): 

     

Accounts 277.263 

   

277,263 

Taxes 6,204 

   

(i7204 

Grants 

   

119,875 119,875 

Due from other funds 126.910 54,761 

 

807 182,478 

Prepaid items 175,810 

   

175.810 

Total assets $ 2413,054 6,785,165 $ 147,998 $ 250.414 $ 9,796,631 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

     

Liabilities: 

     

Accounl payable $ 330,758 $ 336.569 $ $ 119,875 $ 787,02 

Accrued liabilities 116,494 1675 

  

120,169 

Due to other funds 133,366 

 

122.158 

 

255,524 

Total liabilities 580,618 340,244 122,158 119.875 1,162,895 

Fund balances: 

     

Nonspendable for prepaid items 175,810 

   

175.810 

Ass igned 

 

6,444,921 25,840 130.539 6.601.300 

Unassigned 1,856.626 

   

1,856,626 

'iotal fund balances 2,032,436 6,444,921 25,840 130,539 8,633.736 

Total liabilities and fund balances S 2,613,054 $ 6,785,165 147,998 $ 250.414 S 9,796,631  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements. 
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CITY OF EUNICE, LOUISIANA 

Reconciliation ofthe Governmental Funds Balance Sheet 

to the Statement o f Net Position 

June 30, 2023 

Total fund balances for governmental funds at June 30, 2023 

Total net position reported for governmental activities in the statement 

ofnet position is different because: 

Capital and right to use Ieased assets used in governmental activities 

are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in thc 

funds. Those assets consist of 

Capital assets: 

 

$ 8,633,736 

Land $1,358,665 

 

Building and Recreation, net o r$8,166,773 accumulated depreciation 5,106,358 

 

Infrastructure, net of$3,691,248 accumulated depreciation 5,102,846 

 

Equipment, net of$3,055,728 accumulated depreciation 399,651 

 

Vehicles, net of $2,124,732 accumulated depreciation 1,094,092 13,061,612 

Right to use assets: 

  

Riuipment, net of$57,351 accumulated amortintion 215,749 

 

Vehicles, net of$120,935 accumulated amortization 687,703 903,452 

Revenues in the statements of activities that do riot provide current 

financial resources are riot reported as revenues in the funds 

 

607,965 

Elimination ofinterfund assets and liabilities: 

  

Due frorn other Jim& (I 82,477) 

 

Due to other funds 182,477 

 

Amounts related to pension recognition are not due and payable in the 

current period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds 

 

(6,435,333) 

Soine liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and, 

therefore, are not reported as liabilities in the funds. Those 

liabilities consist of 

  

Compensated absences (160,104) 

 

Lease payable (859,051) 

 

Note payable (290,195) (1,309,350) 

Total net position ofgovernmentai funds activities June 30, 2023 

 

$ 15,462,082 

The accornpanying notes are an integral part of the basic financia( staternents. 
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an, afNICE LOUISIANA 

Statement of Revenues. Expenditures, and Change in 

rund 13alanecs - Governmental Funds 

Ycar Ended June 30, 2023 

Revenues 

General 

Fund 

Saics Tax 

Fund 

St. Landry & 

Acadia Parish 

Fire District 

   

Taxes $ 1,589,862 $ 7,048.092 $ 
Liccnscs and permits 598,518 

  

intergovernmental revenues 2,068,446 598.476 160,155 

Fincs. forfeitures and bonds 28,173 

 

- 

Liberty Cajun Music Show 265,661 

 

- 

Interest 5,979 21.296 729 

Miscellaneous 519,593 

  

Total revenues 5,076,233 7,667,864 160,884 

Evenditures 

   

Currcnt -general government 

   

Administrative 2,083,844 94.573 

 

Public; safety 4,135.155 47,568 140,468 

Public works 1.121,374 967,875 

 

I-Icalth and welfare 21.174 

  

Culture and recreation 1,070,522 505.899 

 

Other 93,860 

  

Clapital outlay 

 

1,451,350 

 

Debi service: 

   

Principal retirement 49,453 162,510 

 

Interest and fiscal charges 36,565 22,564 

 

Total expenditures 8,611,947 3,252,339 140,468 

Excess (deficicncy) of 

revenues over expenditures (3.535,714) 4,415,525 20,416 

Other financing sourccs (uses): 

   

Operating transfers in 3,131,170 

  

Operating transfcrs out (118,011) O,705,802) 45.990 

Issuancc of debt 

 

707,217 

 

Proceeds frorn sale o f assets 

 

27,585 

 

Total other financing 

sources (uses) 

acess (deficiency ) of revenues 

and other sources over 

expenditures and other uses 

3,013,159 (2,971.000) 45,990 

(522,555) 1,444,525 66,406 

Fund balances, beginning 2,554,991 5,000,396 (40,566) 

Fund balanccs, ending S 2,032,436 $ 6,444,921 $ 25,840  

Other 

Governmental 

Funds Total 

s - $ 8,637,954 

- 598,518 

203,013 3,030,090 

1,920 30,093 

265,661 

728 28.732 

519,593 

205,661 13,110,642 

101 2,178,518 

4,323,191 

2,089,249 

21.174 

L576,421 

93,860 

199.433 1,650,783 

2l1„963 

59,129 

199,534 12,204.288 

6,127 906,354 

3,131,170 

(3,777,823) 

707,217 

27.585 

88,149 

6,127 994,503 

124,412 7,639,233 

$ 130,539 $ 8,633,736 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements. 
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CITY OF EUNICE, LOUISIANA 

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 

Changes in Fund Balances ofGovernrnental Funds 

to the Statement ofActivities 

Year Ended June 30, 2023 

Total net changes ui fund balancc at June 30, 2023 per statement 

of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances $ 994,503 

The change in net position reported for governmental activities 

in the statement of activities is different because: 

Governmental funds report capital outlays and right of usc assets 

as expenditures; however, in the statement of activities, the cost 

of those assets is allocated over thew estimated useful lives and 

reported as depreciation or amorttiation expense. 

Capital outlay which is considered expenditures on the statement 

o f revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances $ 453,500 

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2023 (498,030) 

Right of use assets which are considered expenditures on the 

statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances $ 654,478 

Amortation expense for the year ended June 30, 2023 (109,933) 

(44,530) 

544,545 
   

Payments on long term debt 

Payments on right of use assets 

66,017 

207,196 273,213    

Revenues in the statement ofactivities that do not provide 

current financial resources are not reported as revenues in 

the funds 29,510 

Net effect ofpension liability recognition (666,909) 

Some items reported in the statement of activities do not require 

the use ofturrent financial resources and, therefore, are not 

reported as expenditures in governmental funds, These activities 

consist oE 

Compensated absences (63,897) 

Proceeds from right o fuse lease assets (707,217) (771,114) 

Total net changes in net position at .lune 30, 2023 per statement oractivities $ 359,218 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements. 
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CITY OF EUN1-CE, LOUISIANA 
Proprietary Fund 

Statement ofNet Position 
June 30, 2023 

Busitiess-Type 
Enterprise fund  

Assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 193,559 

Receivables (net of allowance of uncollectibles) 482,607 
Due frorn other funds 73,046 
Restricted cash, customer deposits 

34546:059101 Prepaid items 
Utility, plant and equipment, at cost 18,156,505 
Accumulated depreciation (12,971,727) 
Right-of-use asset 123,009 
Accumulated amortization: right of use asset (58,942) 

Total assets 6,398,658 

Dekrred Outflows of Resources: 
Deferred outflows related to pensions 368,490 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payablc 77,260 
Accrued liabilities 53,980 
Compensated absences 17,858 
Payable liorn restricted assets - 

Customers' deposits 417,765 
Non-current liabilities 

Due within one year: 
Lease liability 33,657 

Due in more than one year 
Cornpensated absences 6,275 
Net pension liability 810,006 
Lease liability 22,649 
Total liabilities 1,439,450 

De feiTed Inflows of Resources: 
Deferred inflows related to pensions 143,895 

Net Position: 
investment in capital assets, net of related debt 5,184,778 
Unrestricted (975) 

Total net position $ 5,183,803 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements. 
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CITY OF EUNICE, LOUISIANA 

Proprietary Fund 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position 

Year Ended June 30, 2023 

Operating revenues: 

Business-Type 

Enterprise Fund 

 

Charges for services $ 2,865,757 

Other billings to customers 57,151 

Total operating revenues 2,922,908 

Operating expenses: 

 

Payroll and related benefits 661,234 

Natural gas purchases 1,044,389 

Supplies and materials 233,175 

Repairs and maintenance 639,104 

Office expenses 45,984 

Professional fees 33,914 

Insurance 181,464 

Depreciation 364,915 

Bad debts 9,000 

Pennits 42,636 

Utilities and telephone 304,006 

Amortization expense- right of use asset 30.752 

Interest expense 2,220 

Miscellaneous 74,637 

Total operating expenses 3,667,430 

Operating income (expense) (744,522) 

Nonoperating revenue (expenses): 

 

Interest earned on investments 2,728 

Nonemployer pension contribution 10,630 

Total nonoperating revenue (expenses) 13,358 

Income before operating transfers (731,164) 

Operating transfers: 

 

Operating transfers in 857.962 
Operating transfers out (211,309) 

Total operating transfers 646,653 
Change in net position (84,511) 

Net posiiion, beginning 5,268,314 

Net position, ending S 5,183,803 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements. 
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CITY OF EUNICE, LOUMANA 

Proprietary Fund 

Statement of Cash Flows 

Year Ended June 30, 2023 

Cash flows from operating activities: 

Business-Type 

Activities-Enterprise 

Fund 

 

Receipts k.om customers $ 2,903,500 

Par-rents to supplies (2,624,27 I ) 

Payments to employees (798,057) 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities (518,828) 

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities: 

 

Nonernployer pension contribution I 0,630 

Transfers from other funds 857,962 

Transfers to other kinds (211,309) 

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities 657,283 

Cash flows from capital and related financing aetivities: 

 

Proceeds from meter deposits 4,2 I 0 

Payments of right to use leased asset (34,364) 

Net cash provicle€1 (used) by capital and related financing activities (30,154) 

Cash flows from investing activities: 

 

Interest on investments 2,728 

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 2,728 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents I I 1,029 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 439,121 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 550, I 50 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements. 
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ClTY OF EUNICE, LOU1SLANA 
Proprietary Fund 

Statement ofCash Flows 
Year Ended June 30, 2023 

Business- Type 
Activities- Enterprise 

Fund 
Reconciliation of operating income to net cash 

provided by operating activities: 
Operating income (744,522) 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net 

cash provided (used) by operating activities: 
Depreciat ion 364,915 
Amortization-right of use assei 30,752 

Changes in current assets and liabilities: 
(Increase) decrease in receivables (net) (19,408) 
(Increase) decrease in prepaid iterns (13,325) 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (417) 
Increase (decrease) in accrued liabilities (57,326) 
lncrease (decrease) in net pension liability (79,497) 

Net cash used by operating activities $ (5] 8,828) 

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents per the statement 
of cash flows to the staternent of net position: 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning o f year - 
Cash - unrestricted 87,941 
Cash - restricted 351,180 

Total cash and cash equivalents 439,121 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year - 
Cash - unrestricted 193,559 
Cash - restricted 356,591 

Total cash and cash equivalents 550,150 

Net increase (decrease) 111,029 
  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements. 
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CITY OF EUNICE, LOUISIANA 
Fiduciary Fund 

Statement of-Fiduciary Net Position 
June 30, 2023 

Assets 

Custodial Funds 

Total 
Inmate Trust 

Account 
Police Evidence 

Account 

   

Cash $ 33,115 $ 48,339 $81,454 

lnventory 1,100 

 

I. LOO 
Total assets 34,215 48,339 82,554 

Liabilities 

   

Due to local governments 

 

47,975 47,975 

lnrnate payable 580 

 

580 
Total liabilities 580 47,975 48,555 

Net position 

   

Restricted lbr: 

   

Evidence return 

 

3.64 33,999 

Inmate deposits 33,635 

  

Total net position $ 33.635 364 $33,999 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements. 
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CITY OF EUNICE, LOUISIANA 
Fiduciary Fund 

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position 
Year Ended June 30, 2023 

Additions 
Contributions 

 

Custodial Funds 

Total 
Inmate Trust 

Account 

Police Evidence 

Account 

    

Evidence $ 

 

$ 4,973 $ 4,973 

inmate deposits 

 

32,031 

 

32,031 

Total contributions 

 

32,031 4,973 37,004 

!nvestment earnings 

Interest 

  

182 182 

Total investment eamings 

  

182 182 

Totaladditions 

 

32,031 5,155 37,186 

Deductions 

    

Return of evidence 

  

4,973 4,973 

Inmate withdrawals 

 

25,568 

 

25,568 

Total deductions 

 

25,568 4,973 30,541 

Net increase (decrease) in fiduciary 
net position 

 

6,463 182 6,645 

Net position, beginning 27,172 182 27,354 

Net position, ending $ 33,635 $ 364 $ 33,999 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements. 
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CITY OF EUNICE, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The City of Eunice was incorporated in 1909 under the Lawrason Act, and is administered under the 
Mayor and Board of Aldermen form of government. The accounting and reporting policies of the City 
of Eunice conform to United States generally accepted accounting princypl€s as applied to 
governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board is the accepted standard-setting 
body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. Such accounfing 
and reporting procedures also conform to the re€luiremcnts of Louisiana Revised Statutes 24:513 and 
to the guides set forth in the Louisiana Municipal Audit and Accountin Guide and to the industry 
audit guide, Audits of State and Local Governmental Units, published by the American Institute of 
Certified Public Accountants. 

The following is a summary of the more significant accounting policies: 

Reporting Entity. 

In evaluating how to define the City for financial reporting purposes, management has considered all 
potential component units. The decision to include a potential component unit in the reporting entity 
was made by applying the criteria set forth rn GAAP. The basic, but not the only, criterion for 
including a potential component unit within the reporting entity is the governing body's ability to 
exercise oversight responsibility. The most significant manifestation of this ability is financial 
interdependency, Other manifestations of the ability to exercise oversight responsibility include, but 
are not limited to, the selection of governing authority, the designation of management, the ability to 
significantly influence operations ard accountability for fiscal matters. The other criterion used to 
evaktate potential component units for inclusion in the reporting entity is the existence of special 
financing relationships, regardless of whether the City is able to exercise oversight responsibilities. 

Based on the foregoing criteria, the following governmental organizations are not considered part of 
the City because they are not material in relation to the financial statement taken as a whole and are 
thus excluded from the accornpanying financial statements for the reasons noted: 

The Eunice City Court and City Marshall are operated under the directorship of the Eunice City 
Judge and Marshall who are elected public officials. R.evenues are derived from court costs and 
the City cannot significantly infhience operations nor does it have responsibility for fiscal 
management. A copy of the financial statements can be obtained from the City of Eunice, 
Louisiana. 
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CITY OF EUNICE, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

The municipality's officials are also responsible for appointing the members of the board of the 
Housing Authority of Eunice, Louisiana. This agency is considered to be a related organization 
since the municipality appoints the governing board but is not financially accountable for the 
organization. A copy of the financial staternents can be obtained from the Eunice Housing 
Authority, P.O. Box 224, Eunice, LA 70535. 

Basis of Presentation 

Government - Wide Financial Statements (GWFS) 

The statement of net position and statement of activities display information about the non-fiduciary 
activities of the City of Eunice, the primary government, as a whole. They include all funds of the 
reporting entity. The statements distinguish between governrnental and business-type activities. 
Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other 
nonexchange revenues. Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to 
external parties for goods or services. 

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for 
the business-type activities of the City and for each function of the City's governmental activities. 
Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function. Prograrn 
revenues include (a) fees, fines, and charges paid by the recipients of goods and services offered by the 
programs, and (b) requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as prograrn 
revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues. 

Fund Financial Statements 

The accounts of the City of Eunice are organized on the basis of funds each of which is considered a 
separate accounting entity. Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid 
financial management by segregating transactions relating to certain government functions or 
activities. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts 
that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures, or expenses as appropriate, 

Government resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purpose 
for which spe.nding activities are controlled. The various funds are grouped in the financial statements 
in this report, into seven generic fund types and three broad fund categories. The emphasis on fund 
financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate 
column. A fund is considered inajor if it is the primary operating fund of the City or meets the 
following criteria: 
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CITY OF 'EUNICE, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

a. Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of that individual governmental or 
enterprise fund are at least 10 percent of the corresponding total for all funds of that category 
or type; and 

b. Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expense of the individual governmental or 
enterprise fund are at least 5 percent of the corresponding total for all governmental and 
enterprise funds combined 

The major funds or the City are described below: 

Governmental Funds - 

General Fund 

The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. it is used to account for all financial 
resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

aocial Revenue Fund — Sales Tax Fund and St. Landry & Acadia Parish Fire District 

Special revenues funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than 
expendable trusts or major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for specific 
purposes. 

Additionally, the City reports the following fund types: 

Other Special Revenue Funds 

Special revenucs funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than 
expendable trusts or major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for specific 
purposes. 

Fiduciary Funds 

Custodial Funds 

These funds are used to account for assets held by the City as an agent for individuals, private 
organizations, other governments, and/or other funds. Custodial funds are used to report activities 
carried out exclusively for the benefit of those outside of the government. The City operates the 
following custodial, funds. 
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CITY OF EUNICE, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGN iFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Police Department Evidence — The fund accounts for the assets seized by the City of Eunice Police 
Department. 
inmate Trust Account- The fund accounts for the deposits and withdrawals of inrnate funds for use 
in the commissary. 

Prouietary Funds 

Enter nrise Fund 

The Enterprise Fund is used to account for operations (a) that are financed and operated in a manner 
similar to private business enterprises -where the intent of the governing body is that the costs 
(expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a 
continuing basis to be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or (b) where the 
governing body has decided the periodic determination of revenues earned, cxpenses incurred, 
and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, 
accountability or other purposes. The City of Eunices enterprise fund is the utility fund. It 
accounts for the provision of gas and sewer services to residents of the City. 

Measurernent Focus/Basis of Accountin 

Measurement focus is the term used to describe "which" transactions are recorded within the various 
financial statements. Basis ofaccounting refers to "when" transactions are recorded regardless of the 
measurement focus applied. 

Measurement Focus 

On the government-wide statement of net position and the statement of activities, both governmental 
and business-type activities are presented using the economic resources measurement focus as defined 
in item b. below. 

In the fund financial statements, the "current financial resources" measurement focus or the "economic 
resources" rneasurement focus is used as appropriate; 

a. A11 governrnental funds utilize a "current financial resources" measurement focus. Only current 
financial assets and liabilities are generally included on their balance sheets. Their operating 
statements present sources and uses of available spendable financial resources during a given 
period. These funds use fund balance as their measure of available spendable financial resources 
at the end of the period. 
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CITY OF EUNICE, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

b. The proprietary fund utilizes an "economic resources" rneasurement focus. The accounting 
objectives of this measurement focus are the deterrnination of operating income, changes in net 
position (or cost recovery), financial position, and cash flows. All assets anal liabilities (whether 
current or noncurrent) associated with their activities are reported. Proprietary fund equity is 
classified as net position. 

Basis of Accounting 

In the government-wide staternent of net position and statements of activities, both governmental and 
business-type activities are presented using the accrual basis ofaccounting. Under the accrual basis of 
accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the liability is 
incurred or economic asset used. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and liabilities resulting 
from exchange and exchange-like transactions are recognized when the exchange takes place. 

Governmental fund financial statements are accounted for using the current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Their revenues are recognized when 
they become measurable and available as net current assets. Sales taxes are considered "measurable" 
vvhen collected by the collection agency and are recognized as revenue at that time. Ad valorern taxes 
are recognized as revenue in the year in which they are billed. Fees and non tax revenues are 
recognized when received. Grants frorn other governments are recognized when qualifying 
expenditures are incurred. Major receivable balances for the governmental activities include sales and 
use taxes, franehise taxes, and grant funds. Available rneans collectible within the current period or 
soon enough thereafter to pay current liabilities, usually 60 days. Those revenues susceptible to 
accrual are property taxes, grant revenues and interest revenue, 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to use 
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting when the related 
fund liability is incurred except that accumulated unpaid vacation and sick pay are not accrued and 
principal and interest on general long-term debt are recognized when due. Purchases of various 
operating supplies are regarded as expenditures at the time purchased. 

The proprietary fund is accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting, whereby revenues are 
recognized when they are earned and expenses are recognized when incurred. 

Bad debts are written off when accounts become worthless. 

Transfers between funds that are not expected to be repaid are accounted for as other financing sources 
(uses). 
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CITY 0F EUNICE, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SJGNIFICANT ACCOUWING POLICIES (Continued) 

Budgets 

Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles. Annual 
appropriated budgets are adopted for the general and special revenue funds as required by law. All 
annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year end. Project-length financial plans are adopted for all capital 
project funds; therefore, they are not included in this report. 

Encumbrances are not recorded in the financial statements. 

The budget presented is as arnended by the Board of Aldermen. Expenditures may not legally exceed 
budgeted appropriations by rnore than 5% at the individual fund level. 

Priilgram Revenues 

Program revenues included in the Statemen€ of Activities are derived directly frorn the prograrn itself 
or from parties outside the City's taxpayers or citizenry, as a whole; program revenues reduce the cost 
of the function to be financed from the City's general revenues. 

Allocation of Indircct Expenses 

The City reports all direct expenses by function in the Statement of Activities_ Direct expenses are those 
that are clearly identifiable with a function. Indirect expenses of other functions are not allocated to 
those functions, but are reported separately in the Statement of Activities. Depreciation expense is 
specifically identified by function and is included in the direct expense of each function. Interest on 
general iong-term debt is considered an indirect expense and is reported separat.ely on thc Statement of 
Activities. 

Cash and Investments 

Cash includes amounts in dernand deposits. lnvestrnents include certificates of deposit and time 
deposits. The bank balance of cash and investrnems is covered by federal depository insurance or by 
collateral in the name of the pledging fiscal agent bank in a holding or custodial bank that is mutually 
acceptable to both parties. 

Short-Term Interftind R.eceivable/Payables 

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds. These 
receivables and payables are classified as "due from other funds" or "due to other funds" on the 
balance sheet. Interfund receivables and payables between funds within governmental activities are 
eliminated in the Statement of Net Position. 
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CITY OF EUNICE, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICtES (Continued) 

Prepaid Items  

Payrnents made for services that will benefit periods beyond June 30, 2023, are recorded as prepaid 
iterns. 

Capital Assets 

Capital assets, which include property, plant, and equiprnent, are reported in the applicable 
governmental or business-type activities cohtmns in the government-wide financial statements. All 
purchased fixed assets are valued at cost or estimated historical cost. The amounts of estimated costs 
are immaterial to these financial statements. Donated fixed assets are stated at their fair market value 
on the date donated. The City maintains a threshold level of $2,500 or more for capitalizing capital 
assets. 

Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets is recorded as an allocated expense in the staternent of 
activities, with accumulated depreciation reflected in the statement of net position. Depreciation is 
provided over the assets' estimated useful lives using the straight-line method of depreciation. The 
range of estimated useful lives by type of assets is as follows: 

Buildings 40 years 
Equipinent 7 years 
Vehicles 5 years 
Utility system and improvements 25-50 years 

Depreciation of buildings, equiprnent arid vehicles in the proprietary fund types is cornputed using the 
straight-line method. The estirnated useful lives are as follows: 

Gas systern 
Sewerage system 
Meters & regulators 
Vehicle & other equipment 

Cornpensated Absences 

67 years 
40-67 years 

25 years 
4-10 years 

Vested cornpensatory time that is expected to be liquidated with expendable available Financial 
resources is reported as an expenditure and a fund liability of the governmental fund that will pay it_ 
Vcsted compensatory tirne of the proprietary fund is recorded as an expense and liability of that fund 
as the benefits accrue to employees. In accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial 
Standards No. 43, Accounting for Compensated Absences, no liability is recorded for nonvesting, 
accumulating rights to receive sick pay benefits. Vacation time is allowed January l 5t and lapse 
December 3 lst if not used. 
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CITY OF EUNICE, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Long-Term Debt 

The accounting treatrnent of long-term debt depends on whether the assets are used in governmental 
fund operations or proprietary fund operations and whether they are reported in the government-wide 
or fund financial statements. 

All long-term debt to be repaid from governrnental and business-type resources is reported as 
liabilities in the government-wide statements. The long-term debt consists primarily of the net pension 
liability. 

Long-term debt for governmental funds is not reported as liabilities in the fund financial staternents. 
The debt proceeds are reported as other financing sources and payment of principal and interest 
reported as expenditures. The accounting for proprietary fund long-term. debt is the same in the fund 
statements as it is in the government-wide statements. 

Equitv Classifications 

In the government-wide statements, equity is classified as net position and displayed in three 
components: 

a. Invested in ca_pital assets, net of related debt - Consists of capital assets including restricted 
capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any 
bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowing that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, 
or improvement of those assets. 

b. Restricted net position - Consist ofnet position with constraints placed on the use either by (1) 
ext.ernal groups, such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other 
governrnents; or (2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

c. Unrestricted net position - All other net position that do not rneet the definition o f "restricted" 
or - invested in capital assets, net of related debt." 

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report aggregaie amount for five classifications 
of fund balances based on the constraints imposed on the use of these resources. The nonspendable 
fund balance classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in 
spendable forrn —prepaid items or inventories; or (b.) legally or contractually required to be maintained 
intact. 

The spendable portion of the fund balance comprises the remaining for classifications: restrictcd, 
committed, assigned, and unassigned. 
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CITY OF EUNICE, LOUISJ ANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

a. Restri cted fund balance. This c lassi fication reflects the constraints imposed on resources either 
(a) externally by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; 
or (b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling 

b. Committed fund balance. These amounts can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to 
constraints imposed by forrna] resolutions or ordinances of the city council — the government's 
highest level of decision making authority. Those committed amounts can.not be used for any 
other purpose unless the city council removes the specified use by taking the same type of 
action imposing the commitment. This classification also includes contractual obligations to the 
extent that existing resources in the fund have been specifically committed for use in satisfying 
those contractual requirements. 

c. Assimed fund balance.  This classification reflects the amounts constrained by the eity's 
"intent" to be used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. The city 
council and the city tnanager have the authority to assign amounts to be used for specific 
purposes. Assigned fund balances include all remaining amounts (except negative balances) that 
are reported in governmental funds, other than the General Fund, that are not classified as 
nonspendable and are neither restricted nor committed. 

d. Unassianed fund balance. This fund balance is the residual classification for the General Fund. 
It is also used to report negative fund balances in other governmental funds. 

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance 
is available, the City eonsiders restricted funds to have been spent first. When an expenditure is 
incurred for which committed, assigned, or unassigned fund balances are available, the City considers 
the amounts to have been spent first out of committed funds, then assigned funds, and finally 
unassigned funds, as needed, unless the City has provided otherwise in its comrnitrnent or assignment 
actions. 

Revenues, Expenditure, and Expenses 

Operating Revenues and Expenses 

Operating revenues and expenses for proprietary funds are those that result from providing services 
and producing and delivering goods a.nclior services. It also includes all revenues and expenses not 
related to capital and related financing, noncapital financing, or investing activities. All revenues and 
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non operating revenues and expenses. 
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CITY QF EUNICE, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

i.:xpenditures / Expenses 

In the government-wide financial statements, expenses are classified by function for both 
governmental and business-type activities. 

In the fund financial statements, expenditures are classified as follows: 

Governmental Funds - By Character 
Proprietary Fund - By Operating and Nonoperating 

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report expendi€ures of financial resources while 
proprietary funds reporl expenses relating to use of economic resources. 

Interhynd Transactions 

Transactions that constitute reimbursernents to a fund expenditure/expense initially made from it that 
are properly applicable to another fund, are recorded as expenditures/expenses in the reirnbursing fund 
and as reductions of expenditures/expenses in the fund that is reirnbursed. 

All other interfund transactions, except quasi-external transactions and reimbursements, are reported as 
transfers. Nonrecurrin.g or nonroutine permanent transfers of equity are reported as residual equity 
transfers. All other interfund transfers are reported as operating transfers. 

For purposes of the staternent of activities, all interfuncl transfers between individual govern.mental 
funds have been eliminated. 

Statement of Cash Flows 

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, all highly liquid investments (including restricted assets) 
with a maturity or three rnonths or less when purchased are considered to be cash equivalents. 

Subse uent Events 

FASB issued SFAS No 165, Subsequent Events (ASC 855) establishes general standards for 
accounting for and disclosures of events that occur after the balance sheet date but before financial 
statements are issued or are available to be issued. We have evaluated events subsequent to the balance 
sheet through the date the financial staternents were available to be issued. 
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CITY OF EUNICE, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

NOTE 1 SUM1vIARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Recently Issued and Adopted Accountin2 Pronouncements  

GAS.B Statement No. 101, Compensated Absences — This Statement is to better ineet the information 
needs of financial statement users by updating the recognition and measurement guidance for 
compensated absences. That objective is achieved by aligning the recognition and measurement 
guidance under a unified model and by amending certain previously required disclosures, The 
requirements of this Statement are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2023. 

Pension Plans 

The City is a participating employer in multiple pe.nsion plans as described in Note 8. For purposes of 
rneasuring the Net Pension Liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferrcd inflows of resources 
related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Funds, 
and additions toldeductions from the Fund's fiduciary net position have been determined on the same 
basis as they are reported by the retirernent system. For this purpose, benefit payrnents (including 
refunds of employee eontributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the 
benefit terrns. Investrnents have been reported at fair value within the Plans. 

NOTE 2 LEGAL COMPLIANCE - BUDGETS 

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in these financial 
statements: 

The City Clerk prepares a proposed budget and submits same to the Mayor and Council no later 
than fifteen days prior to the beginning of each fiscal year. 

A surnrnary of the proposed budget is published and the public is notified that the proposed 
budget is available for public inspection, At the same tirne, a public hearing is called. 

A public hearing is held on the proposed budget at least ten days after publication of the call for 
the hearing. 
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CITY OF EUNICE, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

NOTE 2 LEGAL COMPLIANCE - BUDGETS (Continued) 

After the hoiding of the public hearing and completion of all action necessary to finalize anol 
irnplement the budget, the budget is adopted through passage of an ordinance prior to the 
commencement of the fiscal year for which the budget is being adopted. 

Budgetary amendments involving the transfer of funds from one department, prograrn or 
function to another or involving increases in expenditures resulting frorn revenues exceeding 
amounts estimated require the approval of the Council, 

Budgets for all funds are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting 
principles of the United States of America. Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted or as 
amended from tirne to tirne by the Board of Alderrnei'L The budget was amended prior to the 
fiscal year end June 30, 2023. 

NOTE 3 CASH AND INTEREST-BEARING DEPOSITS 

The cash and cash equivalents of the City of Eunice, Louisiana are subject to the following risk: 

Cusiodiai Credii Risk: Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the everrt of the failure of a 
depository financial institution, the City will not be able to recover its deposits, Under state taw, these 
deposits (or the resulting bank balances) must be secured by federal deposit insurance, or the pledge of 
securities owned by the fiscal agent bank. The market value of the pledged securities plus the federal 
deposit insurance must at all times equal or exceed the arnount on deposit with the fiscal agent. These 
securities are held in the name of the pledging fiscal agent bank in a holding or custodial bank that is 
mutually acceptable to both parties. Louisiana Revised Statute 39:1229 imposes a statutory 
requirement on the custodial ban.k to advertise and sell the pledged securities within 10 days of being 
notified by the City that the fiscal agent bank has failed to pay deposited funds upon demand. Further, 
Louisiana Revised Statute 39:1224 states that securities held by a third party shall be deemed to be 
held in the City's name. 

At June 30, 2023, the City had cash, book balances and interest-bearing deposits as follows: 

Demand deposits/savings $9,5154  1 5 1  
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CITY OF EUNICE, LOUISlANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

NOTE 3 CASH AND INTEREST-BEARING DEPOSITS (Continued) 

Deposit balances (bank balance) at June 30, 2023, are secured as follows. 

 

Interest 
Bearing 

Non-interest 
Bearing 

Bank balances $7 972,448 $ 357,705 

Federal deposit insurance 250,000 250.000 
Pledged securities (Category 3) 9,863,520 l 07,705 

Total 10,113,520 357,705 

Excess (Shortage) $2,141.072 

 

NOTE 4 RECEIVABLES 

Receivables at June 30, 2023 in the fund financial statements consist of the following: 

 

Governmental Enterprise Total 
Taxes $ 6,204 $ $ 6,204 
Accounts 277,263 610,679 887,942 
Grants 119,875 

 

l 19,875 
Gross receivables 403,342 610,679 1,014,021 

Less allowance for 
uncollectibles 

 

128,072 128,072 

Net total receivables $ 403,342 $482,607 $ 885,949 

Accounts receivables in the Enterprise Fund consist of billed and unbilled receivables relating to gas 
and sewerage services. Gas accounts receivable are divided into two billing cycles. Cycle l is billed 
for rneters read from, the ls' through the l5th  and Cycle 2 is bi lled for rneters read the 16th  through 20. 
Billed receivables at June 30, 2023 were $455,030 and unbilled receivables were $155,649. 

Ad valorem taxcs att.ach as an enforceable lien on property as ofJanuary 1 of each year. Taxes are 
levied by the City in September or October and are actually billed to the taxpayer in November. Billed 
taxes become delinquent on January 1 of the following year. Revenues frorn ad valorem taxes are 
budgeted in thc year billed. 
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CITY OF EUNtCE, LOUISIANA 

Notes of Financial Statements 
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The City bills and collects its own property taxes using the assessed values determined by the tax 
assessors of St. Landry Parish and Acadia Parish. 

For the year ended June 30, 2023 taxes of 11.77 mills were levied on property with an assessed 
valuation totaling $68,508,880 and were dedicated as follows: 

Mil la= Duration  
General corporate tax 6.77 mills Permanent 
Street rnaintenance 5.00 rnills 2022-2031 

11,77 

Total taxes levied were $806,350. Taxes receivable, net of allowance for uneollectibles, at June 30, 
2023 were $6,204. 

NOTE 5 FLOWS OF FUNDS - RESTRICTIONS ON USE - SALES TAX REVENUES 

The City of Eunice levies a 2.45% sales and use tax dedicated as follows: 

Proceeds of the 1% sales and use tax levied in 1978 are dedicated as follows: 

Under the terrns of the sales tax ordinance, all rnonies collected are deposited into a separate 
account. 

Monies remaining in the sales tax fund after payrnent of collection expenses may be used for 
providing additional general fund revenues and for the construction, operations and 
rnaintenance of capital improvements. 

This is a 25 year sales and use tax that was renewed for an additional 25 years and will expire 
on December 31, 2028, 

Proceeds of the 1% sales and use tax levied in 1962 are dedicated as follows: 

Opening, constructing, paving, resurfacing and improving streets, sidewalks and bridges; 
constructing and purchasing street lighting facilities; constructing and improving drains, 
drainage canals and subsurface drainage; constructing and purchasing fire department 
stations and equipment; constructing and purchasing police department stations and 
equipment; constructing and purchasing garbage disposal and health and sanitation 
equipment; construeting public. buildings; purchasing, constructing and improving publie 
parks and recreational facilities and acquiring the necessary equipment and furnishings 
therefore; purchasing equipment for civii defense; constructing, acquiring or improving any 
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NOTE 5 FLOWS OF FUNDS - RESTRICTIONS ON USE - SALES TAX REVENUES (Continued) 

work of permanent public improvement; and purchasing and acquiring all equipment and 
furnishing for public works, buildings, improvements and facilities. 

Providing funds, not to exceed ten percent (10%) of the proceeds of said tax for such year, 
to defray costs of operating and maintaining, a public library. 

Providing funds, not to exceed ten percent (10%) of the proceeds of said t.ax for such year, 
for the payment of salaries of municipal employees. 

In addition to the purposes previously approved, not rnore than 10Vo of such proceeds may 
be used in each fiscal year for general rnunicipal purposes in the event that unbudgeted 
emergency expenses are incurred by the City in that year. 

The 1962 sales and use tax is a permanent sales tax. 

Proceeds of ihe .2% sales and use tax levied in 1988 are dedicated as follows: 

Monies remaining in the sales tax fund may be used for constructing, acquiring, extending, 
improving, operating and maintaining sewers and sewerage disposal 

The 1988 sales and use tax is a permanent sales tax. 

Proceeds of the .25% sales and use tax levied in 2019 are dedicated as follows: 

Providing funds for public safety salaries and related compensation. 

The 2019 sales and use tax is a permanent sales tax. 

NOTE 6 LONG-TERM DEBT 

The following is a summary of debt transactions of the City of Eunice for the year ended June 30, 
2023: 

 

06/30/2022 Additions Retirements 06/30/2023 
Compensated absences payab1e $ 101,352 $ 65,027 

 

$ 166,379 
Note payable 356,212 

 

66,017 290,195 
Lease liability 449,700 707,217 241,560 915,357 
Net pension liability 5 654,137 4,369,717 

 

10,023,854 

 

$ 6,561,401 $ 5,141,961 307,577 $ 11;395,785 
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The City entered into a financing agrecment with U.S. Bancorp Government Leasing and Financing, 
Inc., on April 16, 2018, in the amount of $676,510, at 3.81% interest, for the purchase of two fire 
trucks, 

Future payments as ofJune 30, 2023 are as follows: 

Date Principal Interest Total 

2024 $ 68,531 $ 11,057 $ 79,588 
2025 71,143 8,445 79,588 

2026 72,549 7,039 79,588 

2027 77,972 1,616 79,588 

 

$290,195 $ 28,157 $318,352 
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NOTE 7 CAP[TAL AND RIGHT TO USE LEASED ASSETS 

Duri ng the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, the City implemented GASB Statement No. 87, Leases, 

requiring the recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were 
classified as operating leases. It establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the 
principle that leases are financings of the right to use lease assets. Under this Statement, a lessee is 
required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right to use lease asset, and a lessor is 
required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby enhancing the 
relevance and consistency of information about a goveniments' leasing activities. 

Capital and right to use leased asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2023 is as follows: 

Governrnentalactivities: 

Capital assets not being depreciated: 

Balance 

06/30/2022 Additions Deletions 

Balance 

06/30/2023 

    

Land $ 1,358,665 $ $ $ 1,358,665 

Other capital assets: 

    

Buildings & recreation 13,222,423 199,433 148,725 13,273,131 

I nfrastructure 8,313,646 523,260 42,812 8,794,094 

Equipment 3,428.874 175,540 149,035 3,455,379 

Vehicles 3,322,985 

 

104,161 3,218,824 

Total capital assets 29,646.593 898,233 444,733 30,100,093 

Less accumulated depreciation 

    

Buildings & recreation 8,069,257 240,533 143,017 8,166,773 

Infrastructure 3.350,957 370,265 29.974 3,691,248 

Equipment

 

3,069,988 134,775 149,035 3,055,728 

Vehicles 2,050,249 !78,644 104,161 2,124,732 

Total accumulated depreciation 16,540,451 924,2 I 7 426,187 17,038,481 

Right to use lease assets: 

    

Equipment 177,515 95,585 

 

273,100 

Vehicles 249,745 656,965 98,072 808,638 

Total right to use lease assets 427,260 752,550 98,072 1,081,738 

Less accumulated amortization 

Equipment 5,917 51,434 

 

57,351 

Vehicles 62,436 81,520 23,021 120,935 

Total accumulated amortization 68,353 132,954 23,021 178,286 

Governmental activities, capital and 

right to use leased assets, net $ 13,465,049 $ 593,612 $ 93,597 $ 13.965,064 
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Rusiness-type activities: 

Capital assets not being depreciated: 

Construction in progress 

Other capital assets: 

Balance 

06/30/2022 Additions 

Balance 

Deletions 06/30/2023 

    

Gas system 6,103.198 

  

6,103,198 

Sewer system )1,529,260 

  

11,529,260 

Vehicles 52,870 

  

52,870 

Equipment 471,177 

  

471,177 

Total capital assets 18,156,505 

  

18,156,505 

Less accumulated depreciation 

    

Gas system 3,689,136 95,385 

 

3,784,521 

Sewer system 8,419,951 269,153 

 

8,689,104 

Vehicles 106,343 

  

106,343 

Equipment 391,382 377 

 

391,759 

Total accumulated depreciation 12,606,812 364,915 

 

12,971,727 

R.ight to use lease assets: 

    

Vehic!es 123,009 

  

123,009 

Total right to use lease assets 123,009 

  

123,009 

Less accumulated amortization 

    

Vehicles 28.190 30.752 

 

58,942 

Total accumulated amortization 28,190 30,752 

 

58,942 

Business type activities, capital and 

right to use leased assets, net $ 5,644,512 $ (395,667) $ 5,248,845 

Amortization of the right to use leased assets is computed by the straight-line method over the 
estimated contract period including renewals. Amortization of the right to use leased assets totaled 
$163,706 for the year ended June 30, 2023 and is reported within depreciation/amortization under 
operating expenses in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position. 

The City entered into a 5 year lease with Enterprise FM Trust for the use of vehicles. The terrn of 
the lease is from February 14, 2020 through January 14, 2025. The original lease provided for a 
monthly payment of$9,087. Thc implicit rate on the GASB 87, Leases transition date was 2.59%. 
On February 14, 2023, four of the vehicles were sold. The current monthly lease payment is $6,696 
The following schedule summarizes the future principal and interest requiremcnts for the leased 
vehicles at June 30, 2023. 
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Date Principal Interest Total 
2024 $ 78,063 $ 2,299 $ 80,362 
2025 46,212 398 46,610 

 

$124,275 $ 2,697 $126,972 

The City entered into a 5 year lease with Enterprise FM Trust for the use of street ve,hicles. The 
term of the lease is from February 14, 2023 through January 14, 2028. The lease provided for a 
monthly payment of $2,145. The irnplicit rate on the GASB 87, Leases transition date was 2.59%. 
The following schedule summarizes the future principa] and interest requirements for the leased 
vehicles at June 30, 2023. 

Date Principal Interest Total 
2024 $ 23,132 $ 2,707 $ 25,839 
2025 23,739 2,000 25.739 
2026 24,16 1 1,378 25,739 
2027 25,001 738 25,739 
2028 14,885 129 15,014 

 

$ 111,H S $ 6,952 $118,070  , 

The City entered into a 5 year lease with Enterprise FM Trust for the use of l 0 police vehicles. The 
terms of the leases range frorn December 5, 2022 through Novernber 5, 2028. The leases provided 
for a rnonthly payment of $8,735, The implicit rate on the GASB 87, Leases transition date was 
2.59%. The following schedule summarizes the future principal and interest requirements for the 
leased vehicles at June 30, 2023, 

Dale Principal Interest Total 

2024 $ 94,102 $ 10,718 $ 104,820 
2025 96,571 8,249 104,820 
2026 99,105 5,715 104,820 
2027 101,705 3,115 104,820 
2028 64,834 612 65,446 

 

$456,317 $ 28,409 $484,726 
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The City entered into a 63 month lease agreement with Lenovo Financial Services for the use of 
copy machine/printers on May 11, 2022. The lease provides for a monthly payment of $6,144. The 
implicit rate on the GASB 87, Leases transition date was 12.5%. The following schedule 
summarizes the future principal and interest requirements for the leased machines at Rine 30, 2022. 

Date Principal Interest Total 
2024 $ 48,490 $ 25,238 $ 73,728 
2025 54,911 18,817 73,728 
2026 62,182 11,546 73,728 
2027 58,064 3,378 61,442 

 

$223,647 $ 58,979 $282,626 

The following schedule summarizes the curnulative future principal and interest requirements 
for leases. 

Date Principal Interest Total 
2024 $ 243,787 $ 40,962 $ 284,749 
2025 221,433 29,464 250,897 
2026 185,648 18,639 204,287 

2027 184,770 7,231 192,001 
2028 79,719 741 80,460 

 

$ 915,357 $ 97,037 $ 1,012,394 . 
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STATE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS 

Municipal Employees' Retirement System 

Substantially a€l city employees, except firemen, policemen and the judge are members of the 
Municipal Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana (MERS), a multiple-employer (cost-sharing), 
public employee retirement systern (PERS), controlled and administered by a separate board oftrustees. 
The MERS is cornposed of two distinct plans. Plan A and Plan B, with separate assets and benefit 
provisions. All members participate in Plan A. 

Eligibility Requirements 

Membership is mandatory as a condition of employment beginning on the date employed if the 
employee is on a permanent basis working at least thirty-five hours per week. Those individuals paid 
jointly by a participating employer and the parish are not eligible fbr membership in the System with 
exceptions as outlined in the statutes. 

Any person eligible for mernbership whose first employment making him eligible for membership in 
the System occurred on or after January 1, 2013 shall become a member of the MERS Plan A Tier 2 or 
MERS Plan B Tier 2 of the System as a condition of employment. 

Retirement Benefits 

Benefit provisions are authorized within Act 356 of the 1954 regular session and amended by LRS 
11:1756-11: I 785. The following brief description of the plan and its benefits is provided for general 
information purposes only. Participants should refer to the appropriate statuses for more complete 
information. 

Any mernber of Plan A who commenced participation in the System prior to January 1, 2013 can retire 
providing he meets one of the following criteria: 

1. Any age with twenty-five (25) or rnore years of creditable service. 

2. Age 60 with a rninimum of ten (10) years of creditable service. 
3. Any age with 20 years of creditablc scrvice, exclusive of military service with an 

actuarially reduced early benefit. 

Generally, the rnonthly amount of the retirement allowance for any member of Plan A shall consist of 
an amount equal to three percent of the member's monthly average final compensation multiplied by 
his years of creditable service. Final average compensation is the average monthly eamings du.ring the 
highest sixty consecutive months, or joined months if service was interrupted. However, under certain 
conditions as outlined in the statutes, the benefits are limited to specified amounts. 
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Any mernber of Plan A Tier 2 shall bc eligible for retirement if he meets one of the following 
requirements: 

. Age 67 with seven (7) years of creditable service. 
2. Age 62 with ten (10) years of creditable service. 
3. Age 55 with thirty (30.) years of creditable service. 
4. Any age with twenty-five (25) years of creditable service, exclusive of rnilitary service 

and unused annual sick leave. 

Survivor Benefits 

Upon death of any member of Plan A with five (5) or more years of creditable service, not eligible for 
retirerrient, the plan provides for benefits for the surviving spouse and minor children as outlined in the 
statutes. 

Any mernber of Plan A who is eligible for normal retirement at time of death and who leaves a 
surviving spouse will be deemed to have retired and selected Option 2 benefits on behalf of the 
surviving spouse on the date of death. Such benefits will begin only upon proper application and are 
paid in lieu of any other survivor benefits. 

Any member of Plan A or Plan B who had not withdrawn their accumulated contributions and had at 
least twenty years of service credit at time of death, surviving spouse shall receive benefits for as long 
as heishe lives as outlined in the statutes. 

Drop Benefits 

ln lieu of terminating employment and accepting a service retirement allowance, any member of Plan 
A or B who is eligible to retire may elect to participate in the deferred retirement option plan (DROP) 
for up to three years and defer the receipt of benefits. During participation in the plan, employer 
contributions are payable but employee contributions cease. The monthly retirement benefits that 
would be payable, had the person elected to cease employment and receive a service retirement 
allowance, are paid into the DROP Fund. Interest is earned when the rnernber has completed DROP 
participation. Interest earnings are based upon the actual rate of return on the investments identified as 
DROP funds for the period. In addition, no cost-of-living increases are payable to participants until 
employment which made them eligible to become members of the System has been, terminated for at 
least one full year_ 

Upon termination of employment prior to or at the end of the specified period of participation, a 
participant in the DROP rnay receive, at his option, a lurnp sum from the account equal to the 
payrnents into the account, a true annuity based upon his account balance in that fund, or any other 
method of payment if approved by the board of trustees. [fa participant dies during the pa.rticipation in 
the DROP, a lump surn equal to the balance in his account shall be paid to his named beneficiary or, if 
none, to his estat.e. If employment is not terminated at the end of the three years, payments into the 
DROP fund cease and the person resumes active contributing membership in the System. 
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Disability Benefits 

For Plan A, a rnember shall be eligible to retire and receive a disability benefit if he has at least five 
years of creditable service, is not eligible for normal retirernent, and has been officially certified as 
disabled by the State Medical Disability Board. Upon retirement caused by disability, a member of 
Plan A shall be paid a disability benefit equal to the lesser of forty-five percent of his final average 
compensation or three percent of his final average compensation rnultiplied by his years of creditable 
service, whichever is greater, or an amount equal to three percent of the member's final average 
cornpensation multiplied by his years of creditable service projected to his earliest norrnal retirement. 

Cost of Living Increases 

The Systern is authorized under state law to grant a cost of living increase to members who have been 
retired for at least one year, The adjustment cannot exceed 2% of the retiree's original benefit for each 
full calendar year since retirement and may only be granted if sufficient funds are available frorn 
investment incorne in excess of normal requirements. State law allows the System to grant additional 
cost of l iving increases to all retirees an.d beneficiaries who are age sixty-five and above equal to 2% of 
the benefit being received on October 1, 1977, or the original benefit, if retirement commenced after 
that date. 

Deferred Benefits  

The Plans provide for deferred benefits for members who terminate before being eligible for 
retirement. Once the member reaches the appropriate age for retirement, benefits become payable. 
Benefits are based on statutes in effect at time of withdrawal. 

Funding Policy - State statute recluires covered employees to contribute 10.00 percent of their salaries 
to the System. As provided by Louisiana Revised Statute 11:756 — 11:1785, the ernployer contributions 
are determined by actuarial valuation and are subject to change each year based on the results of the 
valuation for the prior fiscal year. The current actuarially determined rate is 29.50 percent of annual 
covered payroll. The City's contributions to the System under Plan A for the years ending June 30, 
2023 and 2022 were $504,704 and $524,124, respectively, equal to the required contributions for each 
year. 

The Systern issues an annual publicly available financial repent that includes financial statements and 
required supplernentary information for the Systern. That report may be obtained by writing to the 
Municipal Employees' R_et irement System, 7937 Office Park Blvd., Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70809, or 
by calling (225) 925-4810. 

Pension liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows 
of Resources Related to Pensions 

At June 30, 2023, the City reported a liability of $3,917,463 for its proportionate share of the net 
pension liability for the MERS plan. The net pension liability was rneasured as of June 30, 2022 and 
the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial 
valuation as of that date. The City's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of 
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the City's long-term share of contributions to the MERS pension plan relative to the projected 
contributions of all participating ernployers, actuarial]y deterrnined. At June 30, 2022, the City's 
proportion was 0.943232%, which was a increase of 0.1.14347% from its proportion rneasured as of 
June 30, 2022. 

For the year ended June 30, 2023, the City recognized net pension expense of $593,620 including 
employer's amortization of change in proportionate share and differences between employer 
contributions and proportionate share of contributions. 

Non-employer contributions 

The System also receives insurance premium tax monies as additional employer contributions. The tax 
is considered support from a non-contributing entity and appropriated by the legislature each year 
based on an actuarial study. Non-employer contributions are recognized as revenue. The City 
recognized $67,175 of non-employer contribution revenue, 

At June 30, 2023, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions from the following sources: 

Deferred Outflows Deferred inflows 
of Resources of Resources 

Differences between expected 
and actual experience 4,627 $ 

OhangeS in assumptions 37,951 
Net difference between projected 

and actual earnings on pension 
plan investments 651,850 (19,420) 

Changes in proportion and differences 
between employer contributions and 
proportionate share ofcontribut ions 266,380 (107,187) 

Employer contributions subsequent 
to measurement date 504,704  
Total $ 1.465,512 $ (126,607)  

The City reported a total of $504,704 as deferred outflow of resources related to pension contributions 
made subsequent to the measurement period ofiune 30, 2023, which will be recognized as a reduction 
in net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2024. 
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Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions will be recognized as an increase (decrease) in pension expense as follows: 

Year Ended June 30: MERS 
2023 $ 316,300 
2024 242,948 
2025 49,238 
2026 303349 
Total $ 911.835 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 

The components of the net pension liability of the City as ofJune 30, 2023 and 2022 are as follows: 

 

2022 

PLAN A 

2023 

PLAN A 
Total Pension Liability $ 10,393,272 $12,191,003 
Plan Fiduciary Net Posiiion (8,087,726) (8,273,540) 

Total Net Pension Liability $ 2,305,546 $ 3,917,463 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position 
as a % ofthe Total Pension 

  

Liability 77.8, % 67.87% 
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A summary of the actuarial methods and assumptions used in determining the total pension liability as 
of June 30, 2022 are as follow: 

June 30, 2022 

Entry Age Normal 

6.85%, net of investment expense 

2.50% 

6.4°/© - Plan A 

4.5% - Plan A 

PubG-20 t 0(B) Healthy Retiree Table 

set equal to 120% for males and females, 

each adjusted using hteir respccive 

male and female MP20I8 scales. 

PubG-20 I 0(B) Employee Table set equal 

to 120% for males arid females, each 

adjusted using their respective male and 

female M P2018 scales. 

PubN S-20 l 0(£i) Disabled Retiree Table set 

equal to 120% for rnales and females with (he 

full generational MP2018 scale. 

Valuation date 

Actuarial cost method 

Actual Assumptions: 

Investment rate of return 

Inflation rate 

Salary increases, inlcuding 

inflation and merit increases: 

- l to 4 years of service 

-More than 4 years of service 

Anntiitant and beneficiary 

rnortality 

Ernplooyee mortality 

Disabled lives mortality 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-
block method in which best-estimates ranges of expeoed future real rates of return (expected returns, net 
of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges 
are combined to produce the long-terrn expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real 
rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation of 2.5% and an 
adjustment for the effect of rebalancing/diversi fication. The resulting expected long-term rate of return 
was 6.85% for the year ended June 30, 2022. 
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Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the System's target 
asset allocation as of June 30, 2022 are summarized in the following table: 

Asset Class 

Target Asset 
Allocation 

Long-Terrn Expected 
Portfolio Real Rate 

of Return 
Public equity 53% 2.31% 
Public faed income 38% 1.65% 
Alternatives 9% 0.39% 

Totals MO% 4.35% 

[n€lation 

 

2.60% 
Expected Arithmetic Nominal. Return 

 

6.95% 

The discount rate used to rneasure the total pension liability was 6.85% for the year ended June 30, 2022, 
The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions frorn plan 
members will be made at the current contribution rates and that contributions frorn participating 
employers will be rnade at the actuarially deterrnined rates approved by PRSAC taking into 
consideration the recommendation of the System's actuary. Based on those assumptions, the System's 
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of 
current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investinents was 
applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 

Sensitivity to Changes in Discount Rate 

The following presents the net pension liability of the participating employers calculated using the 
discount rate of 6.85%, as well as what the employers' net pension liability would be if it were 
calculated using a discoun.t rate that is one percentage point lower, or one percentage point higher than 
the current rate as of June 30, 2022: 

Changes in Discount Rate 
Plan A 

1% Cuffent 1% 
Decrease Discount Rate lnerease 

5.85% 6.85% 7.85% 
Net Pension Liability $ 5,210,990 $ 3,917,463 $ 2,824,473 
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Changes in Pension Liability 

The changes in the net pension liability tor the year ended June 30, 2022 were recognized in the current 
reporting period except as follows: 

Differences betueen Expected and Actual Experience: 

The differences between expected and actual experience with regard to economic or demographic factors 
in the measurement of the total pension liability were recognized as pension benefit using the straight-
line amortization m.ethod over a closed period equal to the average of the expected rernaining service 
lives ()fall employees that are provided with pensions through the pension plan. The difference between 
expected and actual experience resulted in a deferred inflow of resources as of June 30, 2022 in the 
amount of $0. 

Differences between Projected and Actual Investment Earnings: 

The differences between projected and actual investment earnings on pension plan investrnents were 
recognized in pension expense using the straight-line amortization rnethod over a closed five-year 
period. The difference between projected and actual investment earnings resulted in a deferred outflow 
of resources as of June 30, 2022 in the amount of $4,627. 

Changes in Proportion: 

Changes in the employer's proportionate share of the collective net pension liability and collective 
deferred outflows o f resources and deferred inflows of resources since the prior measurement date were 
recognized in employer's pension expense (benefit) using the straight-line amortization method over a 
closed period equal to the average of the expected remaining service lives of all ernployees that are 
provided pensions through the pension plan. 

Contributions — Proportionate Share 

Differences between contributions remitted to the Systern and the employer's proportionate share are 
recognized in pension expense (benefit) using the straight-line amortization method over a closed period 
equal to the average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are provided with a 
pension through the pension plan. 
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Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System  

Plan Description 

The Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System is the administrator of a cost-sharing multiple-
employer plan. Membership in the Systern is mandatory for any full-time police officer employed by a 
municipality of the State of Louisiana and engaged in law enforeement, empowered to make arrests, 
providing he or she does not have to pay social security and providing he or she meets the statutory 
criteria. The Systern provides retirement benefits for tnunicipal police officers. The projections of benefit 
payments in the calculation of the total pension liability includes all benefits to be provided to current 
active and inactive employees through thc Systern in accordance with benefit terms and any additional 
legal agreements to provide benefits that are in force at the measurement date. 

Benefit provisions are authorized within Act 189 of 1973 and amended by LRS 11:2211 J 1:2233, The 
following is a brief description of the plan and its benefits and is provided for general information 
purposes only. Participants should refer to the appropriate statutes for more complete information. 

Membership Prior to January 1, 2013  

A member is eligible for regular retirement after he has been a member of the Systern and has 25 years of 
creditable service at any age or has 20 years of creditable service and is age 50 or has 12 years creditable 
service and is age 55. A member is eligible for early retirement after he has been a member o f the System 
for 20 years of creditable service at any age with an actuarially reduced benefit. 

Benefit rates are three and one-third percent of average final cornpensation (average monthly earnings 
during the highest 36 consecutive months or joined months if service was interrupted) per number of 
years of creditable service not to exceed 100% of final salary. 

Upon the death of an active contributing member, or disability retiree, the plan provides for surviving 
spouses and minor children. Under certain conditions outlined in the statute.s, the benefits range from 
forty to sixty percent of the member's average final compensation for the surviving spouse. In addition, 
each child under age eighteen receives benefits equal to ten percent of the member's average final 
compensation or $200.00 per rnonth, whichever is greater. 

Membership Cornmencin January 1, 2013  

Member eligibility for regular retirement, early retirement, disability and survivor bench ts are based on 
Hazardous Duty and Non Hazardous Duty sub plans. Under the Hazardous Duty sub plan, a member is 
eligible for regular retirement after he has been a member of the System and has 25 years of creditable 
service at arty age or has 12 years of creditable service at age 55. Under the Non Hazardous Duty sub 
plan, a rnernber is eligible for regular retirement after he has been a member of the Systern and has 30 
years of creditable service at any age, 25 years of creditable service at age 55, or 10 years of creditable 
service at age 60. Under both sub plans, a member is eligible for early retirernent after he has been a 
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member of the System for 20 years of creditable service at any age, with an actuarially reduced benefit 
from age 55. 

Under the Hazardous and Non Hazardous Duty sub plans, the benefit rates are three percent and two and a 
half percent, respectively, of average final compensation (average rnonthly earnings during the highest 60 
consecutive months or joined rnonths i r service was interrupted) per number o years of creditable service 
not to exceed .100 )̀/0 of final salary. 

Upon death of an active contributing member, or disability retiree, the plan provides for surviving spouses 
and minor children. Under certain conditions outlined in the statues, the benefits range from twenty-five to 
fifty-five percent of the member's average final compensation for the surviving spouse. in addition, each 
child under age eighteen receives ten percent of average final compensation or $200 per month whichever 
is greater. If deceased member had less than ten years of service, beneficiary will receive a refund of 
employee contributions only. 

Cost of Living Adipstments 

The Board of Trustees is authorized to provide annual cost-of-living adjustments cornputed on the amount 
of the current regular retirement, disability, beneficiary or survivor's benefit, not to exceed 3% in any given 
year. The Board is authorized to provide an additional 2% COLA, computed on the member's original 
benefit, to al t regular retirees, disability, survivors and beneficiaries who are 65 years of age or older on the 
cut-off date which determines eligibility. 

No regular retiree, survivor or beneficiary shall be eligible to receive a cost-of-living adjustment until 
benefits have been received at least one full fiscal year and the payment of such COLA, when authorized, 
shall not be effeetive until the lapse of at least one-half of the fiscal year. 

Members vvho elect early retirement are not eligible for a cost of living adjustment until they reach regular 
retirement age. A COLA may only by granted if funds are available in excess of normal requirements, as 
determined by the actuary. 

Deferred Retirement Option Plan 

A member is eligible to elect to enter the deferred retirernent option plan °DROP) when he is eligible for 
regular retirernent based on the rnernbers' sub plan participation. Upon filing the application for the 
program, the employee's active membership in the Systern is terrninated. At the entry date into the IDROP, 
the employee and employer contributions cease. The amount to be deposited into the DROP account is 
equal to the benefit computed under the retirertient plan elected by the participant at date of application. 
The duration of participation in the DROP is thirty six months or less. If employment is terminated after 
the three-year period the participant may receive his benefits by lump sum payment or a true annuity. If 
ernployrnent is not terminated, active contributing membership into the System shall resurne and upon later 
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termination, he shall receive additional retirement benefit based on the additional service, For those eligible 
to enter DROP prior to January I, 2004, DROP accounts shall earn interest subsequent to the termination 
of DROP participation at a rate of half of one percentage point below the percentage rate of return of the 
System's investment portfolio as certified by the actuary on an annual basis but will ne.ver lose rnoney. For 
those eligible to enter DROP subsequent to January I, 2004, an irrevocable election is rnade to earn interest 
based on the System's investment portfolio return or a money market investment return. This could result 
in a negative earnings rate being applied to the account. 

If the member elects a money market investment return, the funds are transferred to a government money 
market account. 

tnitial Benefit Option Plan 

In 1999, the State Legislature authorized the System to establish art Initial Benefit Option program. Initial 
Benefit Option is available to members who are eligible for regular retirement and have not participated in 
DROP. The Initial Benefit Option program provides both a one-time single sum payment of up to 36 
months of regular monthly retirement benefit, Otis a reduced monthly retirement benefit for life. Interest is 
computed on the balance based on same criteria as DROP_ 

Employer Contributions 

Contributions for all members are actuarially deterrnined as required by state law but cannot be less than 
9% of the employees' earnable compensation excluding overtirne but including state supplemental pay. 

For the year ended June 30, 2022, total contributions due from etnployers and employees were as follows: 

 

Contribution Rates 

 

Employee Employer Total 
Members hired prior to 1/I /20 I 3 10.00% 29.75% 39.75% 
Hazardous Duty Members hired afler 1/1/2013 10.00% 29.75% 39.75% 
Non Hazardous Duty Members hired after 1/1/2013 8.00% 29.75% 37.75% 
Members whose earnabk compensation is 

less than the poverty guidelines 7.50% 32.25% 39.75% 

The City's contributions to the System for the years ending June 30, 2023 and 2022 were $316,362 and 
$3 1 1,654, equal to the required contributions for the year. 
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The Systern issues an annual publicly available financial report that includes financial staternents and 
required supplernentary information for the System. That report may be obtained by writing to the 
Municipal Police Employees' Retirernent System, 8401 United Plaza Blvd.;  Baton Rouge, Louisiana 
70809-7017, or by calling (225)929-7411. 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions 

At June 30, 2021, the City reported a liability of $3,468,627 for its proportionate share of the net pension 
liability for the MPERS plan. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2022 and the total 
pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of 
that date. The City's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the City's long-
term share of contributions to the MPERS pension plan relative to the projec.ted contributions of all 
participating employers, actuarially determined, At June 30, 2022, the City's proportion was 0,339337%, 
which was a decrease of 0.032581% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2021. 

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the City recognized pension expense of $494,586. 

Non-employer contributions 

The System also receives insurance premium tax monies as additional employer contributions. The tax is 
considered support frorn a non-contributing entity and appropriated by the legislature each year based on an 
actuarial study. Non-employer contributions are recognized as revenue. The City recognized $75,486 of 
non-employer contribution revenue. 

51 



CITY OF EUNICE, LOUISIANA 

Notes of Financial Statements 

NOTE 8 PENSION AND RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued) 

At June 30, 2023, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related 
to pensions from the following sources: 

Deferred 0utflows Deferred Inflows 
of Resources of Resources 

Diftrences between expected 
and actual experience 17,108 $ (28,270) 

Changes in assumptions 119,648 (25,799) 
Net difference between projected 

and actual earnings on pension 
plan investrnents 619,259 

Changes in proportion and di%renees 
between employer contributions and 
proportionate share of contributions 210,618 (245,645) 

Employer contributions subsequent 
to measurernent date 316,362 (1,133) 
Total 

The City reported a total of $316,362 as deferred outflow of resources related to pension contributions 
made subsequent to the rneasurement period of June 30, 2022 whic.h will be recognized as a reduction in 
net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2024. 

Other amortizable amount.s reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions will be recognized as an increase (decrease) in pension expense as follows: 

Year Ended June 30: MPERS 
2023 $ 149,862 
2024 213,174 
2025 (21,911) 
2026 324,828 
Total $ 665.953 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 

The net pension liability was measured as the portion of the present valuc of projected benefit payments to 
be provided through the pension plan to current active and inactive employees that is attributed to those 
employees' past periods of service, less the amount of the pension plan's fiduciary net position. 

$ 1,282,99.5  $ (300,847)  
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The components of the net pension liability of the City as of June 30, 2023 are as follows: 

Measurement Date 
2021 2022 

Total Pension Liability $ 12,459,359 $ 11,878,475 
Plan Fiduciary Net Position ( I 0,476,833) (8,409,848) 
Total Collective Net Pension Liability $ 1,982,526 $ 3,468,627 

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2022 valuation were based OD the assumptions used in the 
June 30, 2022 actuarial funding valuation, and were based on the results of an actuarial experience study 
for the period July 1, 20)4 - June 30, 2019. In cases where benefit structures were changed after the study 
period, assumptions were based on estimates of future experience. 

A summary of the actuarial methods and assumptions used in determining the total pension liability as 
ofJune 30, 2022 are as follows: 

M PERS 
Valuation date June 30, 2022 

Actuarial cost rtethod Entry Age Norrnal Cost 

Expected remaining service lives 2020 - 4 years 
2019 - 4 years 
2018 - 4 years 
2017 - 4 years 

Investment rate ofreturn 6.75%, net of investment expense 

inflation rate 2.50% 

Salary increases, Years of Service Salary Growth Rate 
includ ing inflation and merit l -2 12.3% 

Above 2 4.7% 
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For annuitants and beneficiaries, the Pub-20 l 0 

Public Retirement Plan Mortality 'fable for Safety 

Below-Median Healthy Retirees multiplied by 

115% for maks and 125% for females, each 

with full generational projection using the M P2019 

scale was used. 

For disabled lives, the Pub-2010 Public Retirement 

Plans Mortality Table for Safety Disable Retirees 

multiplied by 105% for males and 115% for 

females, eacli with full generational projection 

using the MP2019 scale was used. 

For ernloyees, the Pub-2010 Public Retirement 

Plans Mortality Table for Safety Below-Median 

Employees multiplied by 1 I 5% for males and 125% 

for females, each with full generational projection 

using the MP2019 scale was used. 

The present value of future retirement benefits is 

based on benefits currently being paid by the 

System and includes previously granted cost-of-

living increases. The present values do riot include 

provisions for potential future increases not yet 

authorized by the Board of Trustees. 

Mortality 

Cost-of-Living Adjustments 
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The best estirnates of the arithmetic norninal rates of return for each major asset class included in the 
System's target allocation as of June 30, 2022 are summarized in the following table: 

June 30, 2022 
Long Term 
Expected 

Target Portfolio Real 

Asset Class Allocation Rate orReturn 
Equity 55.50% 3.60% 
Fixed income 30.50% 0.8S% 
Alternative 14.00% 0.95% 
Other 0.00% 0.00% 

Totals 100.00% 5.40% 

Inflation 2.66% 

Expected Nominal Return 8.06% 

The discount rate used to rneasure the total pension liability was 6.75%. The projection of cash flows used 
to determine the discount rate assurned that contributions from plan members will be made at the current 
contribution rates and that contributions from participating employers will be rnade at the actuarially 
de.termined rates approved by PRSAC taking into consideration the recommendation of the System's 
actuary. Based on those assumptions, the System's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to 
make all projected future benefit payrnents of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate 
of return on pension plan investments was applied to ail periods of projected benefit payments to determine 
the total pension liability. 

Sensitivity to Changes in Discount Rate 

The following presents the net pension liability of the participating employers calculated using the discount 
rate of 6.750%, as well as what the employers' net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a 
discount rate that is one percentage point lower 5.750% or one percentage point higher 7.750% than the 
current rate as of June 30, 2022. 

Changes in Discount Rate 

 

1% 
Decrease 
5.750%  

Current 1% 
Discount Rate Increase 

6.750% 7,750% 
Net Pension Liability $ 4,855,413  $ 3,468,627 $ 2,310,201       
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Change in Net Pension Liability 

The changes in the net pension liability for the year ended June 30, 2022 were recognized in the cu.rrent 
reporting period as pension expense except as follows: 

Dtfferences between Expected and Actual Experience: 

The differences between expected and actual experience with regard to economic or demographic factors in 
the measurement of the total pension liability were recognized as pension expense using the straight-line 
amortization method over a closed period equal to the average of the expected remaining service lives of all 
employees that are provided with pensions through the pension plan. 

Differences between Projected and Actual Investment Earnings: 

The differences between projected and actual investment earnings on pension plan investments were 
recognized in pension expense using the straight-line amortization rnethod over a closed five-year period, 

changes of Assumptions or Other Inputs: 

The changes of assumptions about future economic or demographic factors were recognized in pension 
expense using the straight-]ine amortization method over a c]osed period equal to the average of the 
expected remaining service lives of all employees that are provided with pensions through the pension plan. 

Change in Proportion: 

Changes in the employer's proportionate shares of the collective net pension liability and collective 
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources since the prior measurement date were 
recognized in employer's pension expense (benefit) using the straight-line amortization method over a 
closed period equal to the average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are 
provided pensions through the pension plan. 

Contributions — Proportionate Share 

Differences between contributions remitted to the System and the employer's proportionate share are 
recognized in pension expense (benefit) using the straight line amortization method over a closed period 
equal to the average of the expected rernaining service lives of all employees that are provided with a 
pension through the pension plan. 
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Firefighters' Retirement System  

Plan Description 

The System is the administrator of a cost-sharing, multiple-employer, defined benefit pension plan. The 
System provides retirement, disability, and death benefits for their members. 

The projections of benefit payments in the calculation of the total pension liability includes all benefits to 
be provided to current active and inactive employees through the System in accordance with benefit terms 
and any additional legal agreernents to provide benefits that are in force at the measurement date. 

Bencfit provisions are authorized within Act 434 of 1979 and amended by Louisiana Revised Statutes 
(R.S.) 11:2251 — l 1:2272. The following is a brief description of the plan and its benefits and is provided 
for general inforrnation purposes only. Participants should refer to the appropriate statutes for more 
complete information. 

Elip,,ibility Requirements 

Any person who becomes an employee as defined in R.S. 11:2252 on and after January 1, 1980, shall 
become a member as a condition of employment. Membership in the System is a condition of 
employment 

for any full-time firefighters (or any person in a position as defined in the municipal fire and police civil 
service system) who earn at least $375 per month and are employed by any municipality, parish, or fire 
protection district of the State of Louisiana in addition to employees of the Firefighters' Retirement 
System. 

No person who has attained age 50 or over shall become a member of the System unless the person 
becomes a member by reason of a merger or unless the System received an application for mernbership 
before the applicant attained the age of 50. No person who has not attained the age of 18 years shall 
become a member of the System. 

Any person who has retired from service under any retirement systern or pension fund maintained 
basically for public officers and employces of the state, its agencies or political subdivisions, and who is 
receiving retirement benefits therefrom may become a rnember of th is System, provided the person meets 
ail other requirernents for membership. Service credit from the retirement system or pension plan from 
which the meinber is retired shall no( be used for reciprocal recognition of service with this System, or for 
any other purpose in order to attain eligibility or increase the amount of service credit in this System. 
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Retirernent Benefits 

Employees with 20 or more years of service who have attained age 50, or ernployees who have 12 years of 
service who have attained age 55, or 25 years of service at any ae are entitled to annual pension benefits 
equal to 3.333% of their average final compensation based on the 36 consecutive months of highest pay 
multiplied by their total years of service, not to exceed 100%. Employees rnay elect to receive their 
pension benefits in the forrn of a joint and survivor annuity. 

If employees terminate before rendering 12 years of service, they forfeit the right to receive the portion of 
their accumulated plan benefits attributable to their employer's contributions. 

Benefits are payable over the employees' lives in the form of a monthly annuity. A member rnay elect an 
unreduced benefit or any of seven options at retirement. 

See R.S. l l :2256(A) for additional details on retirement benefits. 

Disability Benefits 

A member who acquires a disability, and who files for disability benefits while in service, and who upon 
medical examination and certification as provided for in Title I 1, is found to have a total disability solely 
as the result of injuries sustained in the performanc.e of his official duties, or for any cause, provided the 
rnember has at least five years of creditable service and provided that the disability was incurred whie the 
member was an active contributing mernber in active service, shall be e»titled to disability benefits under 
the provisions of R.S. 11:2258(B). 

Death Benefits 

Benefits shall be payable to the surviving, eligible spouse or designated ben.eficiary of a deceased member 
as specified in R.S. I 1:2256(B) & (C). 

Deferred Retirement Qption Plan 

After completing 20 years of creditable service and age 50 or 25 years at any age, a member may elect to 
participate in the deferred retirement option plan (DROP) for up to 36 months. 

Upon commencement of participation in the deferred retirement option plan, employer and employee 
contributions to the System cease. The monthly retirernent benefit that would have been payable is paid 
into the deferred retirement option plan account. Upon termination of employment, a participant in the 
program shall receive, at his option, a lurnp-sum payment from the account or an annuity based on the 
deferred retirement option plan account balancc in addition to his regular monthly benefit. 
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I f employment is not terminated at the end of the 36 rnonths, the participant resurnes regular contributions 
to the System. No payrnents may be made from the deferred retirement option plan account until the 
participant retires. 

Initial Benefit Option Plan 

Effective June 16, 1999, members eligible to retire and who do not choose to participate in DROP may 
elect to receive, at the time of retirement, an initial benefit option (f BO) in an amount up to 36 rnonths of 
benefits, with an actuarial reduction of their future benefits. Such amounts may be withdrawn or remain in 
the IBO account earning interest at the same rate as the DROP account. 

Cost of Living Adjustments (COLAs) 

Under the provisions of R.S. 1 l :246 and 11:2260(A)(7), the board of trustees is authorized to grant retired 
mernbers and widows of members who have retired an annual c.ost of living increase of up to 3% of their 
current benefit, and all retired mernbers and widows who are 65 years of age and older a 2% increase in 
their original benefit. fn order for the board to grant either of these increases, the System rnust meet certain 
criteria detailed in the statute related to funding status and interest earnings (R.S. l 1:243). In lieu of these 
COLAs, pursuant to R.S. 1 :24 I, the board may also grant an increase in the form of "X x (A+B)," where 
"X" is any amount up to $1 per month, and "A" is equal to the number of years of credited service accrued 
at retirement or at death of the member of retiree, and "B" is equal to the number of years since retirement 
or since death of the member or retiree to June 30'h  of the initial year of such increase. 

Funding Policv - State statute requires covered employees to contribute 10.00 percent of their salaries to the 
system. The City is required to contribute 33.25 percent of covered ernployees' salaries. As provided by 
Louisiana Revised Statute 11:103, the employer contributions are determined by actuarial valuation and are 
subject to change each year based on the results of the valuation for the prior fiscal year. The City's 
contribution to the System for the years ending June 30, 2023 and 2022 were $292,526 and $317,112, 
respectively, equal to the required contributions for the year. 

The System issues an annual publicly available financial report that includes financial staternents and 
required supplementary inforrnation for the System. That report may be obtained by writing to the 
Firefighters' Retirement System, 3100 Brentwood Drive, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70809-1752, or by 
calling (225) 925-4060. 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Rcsources Related to Pensions 

At June 30, 2021, the City reported a liability of $2,803,946 for its proportionate share of the net pension 
liability for the FRS plan. The net pension liability was mcasured as ofJune 30, 2022 and the total pension 
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liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. 
The City's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the City's long-term share of 
contributions to the FRS pension plan relativc to the projected contributions of all participating employers, 
actuarially deterrnined. At June 30, 2022, the City's proportion was 0.364680%, which was an decrease of 
0.007188% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2022. 

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the City recognized pension expense of $403,5] 2. 

Non-employer contributions 

The Systern also receives insurance premium tax moll i es as additional employer contributions. The tax is 
considered support from a non-contributing entity and appropriated by the legislature each year based on an 
actuarial study. Non-employer contributions are recognized as revenue. The City recognized $75,486 of 
non-employer contribution revenue. 

At June 30, 2023, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related 
to pensions from the following sources: 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows 
of Resources of Resources 

DifTerences between expected 
and actual experience 15,369 $ (121,205) 

Changes in assumptions 212,036 

Net difference between projected 
and actual earnings on pension 

plan investments 598,804 
Changes in proportion and differences 

betwecn employer contributions and 
proportionate share of contributions 160,575 (63,954) 

Employer contributions subsequent 
to measurement date 292,526  
Total 1,279,310 $ (185,159) 

The City reported a total of $292,526 as deferred outflow of resources re]ated to pension contributions 
made subsequent to the measurement period ofJune 30, 2022, which will be recognized as a reduction 
in net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2024. 

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions will be recognized as an increase (decrease) in pension expense as follows: 
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Year Ended June 30: FRS 
2023 $ (48,378) 
2024 10,514 

2025 (27,930) 

2026 130,474 

Total $ 64,680 

Actuarial Methods and Assurriptions 

The net pension liability was measured as the portion of the present value of projected benefit payments 
to be provided through the pension plan to current active and inactive employees that is attributed to 
those employees' past periods of service, less the amount of the pension plan's fiduciary net position. 

The components of the net pension liability of the City as of June 30, 2022 are as follows: 

 

2021 2022 
Total Pension Liability $ 9,970,465 $10,154,789 
Plan Fiduciary Net Position (8,652,620) (7,583,324) 
Total Collective Net Pension liability $1,317,845 $ 2,571,465 

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2022 valuation were based on the assumptions used in 
the June 30, 2022 actuarial funding valuation, and were based on results of an actuarial experience 
study for the period July 1, 2009 - June 30, 2014. In cases where benefit structures were changed afier 
the study period, assumptions were based on estimates of future experience. 

A summary of the actuarial rnethods and assumptions used in determining the total pension 
liability as of June 30, 2022 are as follows: 
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Valuation date 

Actuarial cost method 

Expected runaining service lives 

lnvestrnent rate of return 

Inflation rate 

Salary increases 

June 30, 2022 

Entry Age Norrnal Cost 

7 years, closed period 

6.9% per annum 

2.50% per annum 

Vary from 14.10% in the first two years of 
service to 5.2% after 25 ycars 

For the pupose of determining the present 
value of benefits, COLAs were deemed not 
to be substantively automatic and only those 
previously granted were included. 

Cost ofliving adjustments 

For the June 30, 2022 valuation, assumptions for mortality rates were based on the following: 

• For active members, rnortality was set equal to the Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans Mortality 
Table for Safety Below-Median Employees. 

• For annuitants and beneficiaries, mortality was set equal to the Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans 
Mortality Table for Safety Below-Median Healthy Retirees. 

• For disabled retirees, mortality was set equal to the Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans Mortality 
Table for Safety Disabled Retirees. 

• In all cases the base table was multiplied by 105% for males and 115% for females, each with full 
generational projection using the appropriate MP-2019 scale. 

The estimated long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investrnents was determined using a 
building-block method in which best-estimates ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected 
returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. 
These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expecied rate of return by weighting the expected 
future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. 
Best estimates of real rates of return for each major asset class included in FRS' target asset allocation 
as of June 30, 2022 are summarized in the following table: 

62 



CITY OF EUNICE, LOUISIANA 

Notes of Financial Statements 

NOTE 8 PENSION AND R.ETIREMENT PLANS (Continued) 

Asset Type 
Target Asset 

Allocation 

Long-Term 
Expected Real 
Rate of Return 

Equity 

U.S. Equity 
Non-U.S. Equity 
Global Equity 
Emerging Markets 

27.50% 
11.50% 
10.00% 
7,00% 

5.64% 
5.89% 
5.99% 
7.75% 

 

Fixed Income I 8.00% 0.84% 
Fixed lncorne U.S. Tips 3.00% 0.51% 

 

Emerging Markets 5.00% 2.99% 

 

Real Estate 6.00% 4.57% 
Alternatives Real Assets 3.00% 4.89% 

 

Private Equity 9.00% 8.99% 
Multi-Asset Global Tactical Asset Allocation 0.00% 3.14% 

Strategies Risk Parity 0.00% 3.14% 

 

100.00% 

 

The discount rate used to rneasure the total pension liability was 6.9%. The projection of cash flows 
used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the 
current contribution rates and that contributions frorn participating employers will be made at the 
actuarially determined rates approved by PRSAC taking into consideration the recommendation o f the 
System's actuar}l. Based on those assumptions, the System's fiduciary net position was projected to be 
available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive plan members. 
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods 
of projected benefit payments to deterrnine the total pension liability. 

Sensitivity to Changes in the Discount Rate 

The following presents the net pension liability of the participating employers calculated using the 
discount rate of 6.9%, as well as what the employers' net pension liability would be i f it were calculated 
using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower 5.90% or one percentage point higher 8.00% 
than the current ra€e as of June 30, 2021. 

Changes in Discount Rate -  
1% Current 10 

Decrease Discount lncrease 
5.90% 6.90% 7.90% 

Net Pension Liability $ 3,804,197 $2,571,465 $1,543,279 
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Chang€ in Net Pension Liability 

The changes in the net pension liability for the year ended June 30, 2022 were recognized in the 
current reporting period as pension expense except as follows: 

Wferences between Expected and Actual Experience: 

The dit≤'ferences between expected and actual experience with regard to economic or demographic 
factors in the measurement of- the total pension liability were recognized as pension expense using the 
straight-line amortization method over a closed period equal to the average of the expected remaining 
service lives of all ernployees that are provided with pensions through the pension plan. 

Differences between Projected and Actual blvestment Earnings: 

The differences between projected and actual investment earnings on pension plan investrnents were 
recognized in pension expense using the straight-line amortization method over a closed five-year 
period. 

Changes of Assumptions: 

The changes of assurnptions about future economic or demographic factors were recognized in pension 
expense using the straight-line amortization rnethod over a closed period equal to the average of the 
expected remaining service lives of all employees that are provided with pensions through the pension 
plan. 

Change in Proportion: 

Changes in the employer's proportionate shares of the collective net pension liability and collective 
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources since the prior measurement date were 
recognized in employer's pension expense (benefit) using the straight-line amortization rnethod over a 
closed period equal to the average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are 
provided pensions through the pension plan. 

Contributions -  Proportionate Share 

Differences between contributions remitted to the System and the employer's proportionate share are 
recognized in pension expense using the straight-line amortization method over a closed period equal to 
the average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are provided with a pension 
through the pension plan. 
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Retirement System Audit Report 

Firefighters' Retirenient System issued a stand-alone audit report on its financial statements for the year 
ended June 30, 2021. Access to the audit report can be found on the System's website: 
www.lafirefightersret.com or on the Office of Louisiana Legislative Auditor's official website: 
www.11a.state.la.us. 

Louisiana State Em  1oyees' Retirement System  

Plan Description 

The System was established for the purpose of providing retirernent allowances and other benefits as 
stated under the provisions of La. R.S. 11:401, as amended, for eligible state officers, employees and 
their beneficiaries. The projection of benefit payments in the calculation of the total pension liability 
includes all benefits to be provided to current active and inactive employees through the System in 
accordance with the benefit terms and any additional legal agreements to provide benefits that are in 
force at the measurement date. 

The following is a description of the plan and its benefits and is provided for general information 
purposes only. Participants should refer to the appropriate statutes for more complete information. 

Retirement Benefits 

The age and years of creditable service required in order for a member to retire with full benefits are 
established by statute, and vary depending on the member's hire date, employer, and job classification. 
Our rank and fi le rnembers hired prior to July l, 2006, may either return with ful l benefits at any age 
upon completing 30 years of creditable service, at age 55 upon completing 25 years of creditable 
service, and at a.ge 60 upon completing ten years of creditable service depending on their plan, Those 
members hired between July 1, 2006 and June 30, 2015, may retire at age 60 upon completing five 
years of creditable service and those hired on or after July 1, 2015, may retire at age 62 upon 
completing five years of creditable service. The basic annual retirernent benefit for rnernbers is equal to 
2.5% to 3.5% of average compensation multiplied by the number of years of creditable service. 
Additionally, rnembers may choose to retire with 20 years of service at any age, with an actuarially 
reduced benefit. 

Average compensation is defined as the member's average annual earned conipensation for the highest 
36 consecutive months of employment for members employed prior to July l, 2006. For rnembers hired 
July 1, 2006 or later, average compensation is based on the member's average annual earned 
compensation for the highest 60 consecutive months of employment. The maximum annual retirernent 
benefit cannot exceed the lesser of 100% of average compensation or a certain specified dollar amount 
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o f actuarially determined monetary limits, which vaiy depending upon the member's age at retirement. 
Judges, court officers, and certain elected officials receive an additional annual retirement benefit equal 
to 1.0% of average compensation multiplied by the nurnber of years of creditable service in their 
respective capacity. As an alternative to the basic retirernent benefits, a member may elect to receive 
their retirement throughout their li fe, with certain benefits being paid to their designated beneficiary 
after their death. 

Act 992 of the 2010 Louisiana Regular Legislative Session, changed the benefit structure for LASERS 
members hired on or after January 1, 2011. This resulted in three new plans: regular, hazardous duty, 
and judges. The new regular plan includes regular members and those members who were Cormerly 
eligible to participate in specialty plans, excluding hazardous duty and judges. Regular members and 
judges are eligible to retire at age 60 after five years of creditable service and, may also retire at any 
age, with a reduced benefit, after 20 years of creditable service. Hazardous duty rnembers are eligible to 
retire with twelve years of creditable service at age 55, 25 years of creditable service at any age or with 
a reduced benefit after 20 years of creditable service. Average cornpensation will be based on the 
member's average annual earned compensation for the highest 60 consecutive months of employment 
for all three new plans. Members in the regular plan will rcceive a 2.5% accrual rate, hazardous duty 
plan a 3.33% accrual rate, and judges a 3.5% accrual rate. The extra 1.0% accnial rate for each year of 
service for court officers, the gove.mor, lieutenant governor, legislators, House clerk, sergeants at arms, 
or Senate secretary, employed after January 1, 20) 1, was eliminated by Act 992. Specialty plan and 
regular members, hired prior to January 1, 2011, who are hazardous duty ernployees have the option to 
transition to the new hazardous duty plan. 

A member leaving employment before attaining minimum retirement age, but after completing certain 
minimum service requirements, becornes eligible for a benefit provided the member lives to the 
minimum service retirement age, and does not withdraw their accumulated contributions. 
The minimum service requirement for benefits varies depending upon the member's employer and 
service classification but generally is ten years of service. 

Deferred Benefits 

The State Legislature authorized LASERS to establish a Deferred Retirement Option, Plan (DROP). 
When a member enters DROP, their status changes from active member to retiree even though they 
continue to work and draw their salary for a period of up to three years. The election is irrevocable once 
participation begins. During DR.OP participation, accumulated retirement benefits that would have been 
paid to each retiree are separately tracked. For members who entered DROP prior to January l, 2004, 
interest at a rate of one-half percent less than the System's realized return on its portfolio (not to be less 
than zero) will be credited to the retiree after participation ends. At that time, the member must choose 
arnong available alternatives for the distribution of benefits that have accumulated in the DROP 
account. Members who enter DR.OP on or after January 1, 2004, are required to participate in LASERS 
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Self-Directed Plan (SDP) which is administered by a third-party provider. The SDP allows DROP 

participants to choose from a rnenu of investment options for the allocation o f their DROP balances. 
Participants may diversify their investments by choosing from an approved list of mutual funds wit.h 

different holdings, management styles, and risk factors. 

Members eligible to retire and who do not choose to participate in DROP may elect to receive at the 
tirne of retirement an initial benefit option (fBO) in an amount up to 36 months of benefits, with an 
actuarial reduction of thei r future benefits. For members who selected the 1BO option prior to January 
1, 2004, such amount may be withdrawn or remain in the [BO account earning interest at a rate of one-
half pereent less than the System's realized return on its portfolio (not to be less than zero). Those 
members who select the IBO on or after January 1, 2004, are required to enter the SDP as described 
above. 

Disability Benefits 

Active members with ten or more years of credited service who become disabled may receive a 
maximum disability retirement benefit equivalent to the regular retirement forrnula without reduction 
by reason of age. 

Upon reaehing retirernent age, the disability retiree may receive a regular retirement benefit by rnaking 

application to the Board of Trustees. 

For injuries sustained in the line of duty, hazardous duty personnel in the Hazardous Duty Services Plan 
will receive a disability benefit equal to 75% of final average compensation or 100% of final average 
compensation if the injury was a result of an intentional act of violence. 

Survivor's Benefits 

Certain eligible surviving dependents receive benefits based on the deceased member's compensation 
and their relationship to the deceased. The deceased mernber who was in state service at the time of 
death must have a minimum of five years of service credit, at least two of which were earned 
irn.rnediately prior to death, or who had a minimum of twenty years of service credit regardless of when 
earned in order for a benefit to be paid t© a minor or handicapped child. Benefits are payable to an 
unmarried child until age 18, or age 23 if the child remains a full-tirne student. The aforernentioned 
minimum service credit requirernent is ten years for a surviving spouse with no minor children, and 
benefits are to be paid for life to the spouse or qualified handicapped child. 

The deceased regular member hired on or after January 1, 2011, must have a minimum of five years of 
service credit regardless of when earned in order for a benefit to be paid to a minor child. The 
aforementioned minimum service credit requirements for a surviving spouse are 10 years, 2 years being 
earned immediately prior to death, and active state service at the time of death, or a minimum of 20 
years of service credit regardless of when earned. A deceased rnember's spouse must have been 
rnarried for at least one year before. death. 
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A Hazardous Duty Services Plan member's surviving spouse and minor or handicapped or mentally 
incapacitated child or children are entitled to survivor benefits of 80% of the member's final average 
compensation if the member was killed in the line of duty. If the member dies in the line of duty as a 
result of an intentional act of violence, survivor benefits may bc increased to 100% of the mernbers 
final average compensation. 

Permanent Benefit Inereases/Cost-of-Living Adjustments 

As fully described in Title 1 I of the Louisiana Revised Statutes, the Systern allows for the payment of 
permanent benefit increases, also known. as cost-of-living adjustments (COLAs), that are funded 
through investrnent earnings when recommended by the Board of Trustees and approved by the State 
Legislature. 

Funding, Policv - State statute requires covered ernployees to contribute 13.00 percent of their salaries 
to the system. The City is required to contribute 43 percent of covered employees' salaries. As provided 
by Louisiana Revised Statute 1 I :103, the employer contributions are deterrnined by actuarial valuation 
and are subject to change each year based on the results of the valuation for the prior fiscal year. The 
City's contribution to the plan for the years ending June 30, 2023 and 2022 were $8,634 and $7,401, 
respectively, equal to the required contributions for the year. 

The System issues an annual publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and 
required supplementary information for the System. That report may be obtained by writing to the 
Louisiana State Employees' Retirement System, 3401 United Plaza Blvd., Baton Rouge, Louisiana 
70809, or by calling (225) 922-0600. 

Pension liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outtlows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions 

Employer Contribution 

At June 30, 2023 the City reported a liability of $66,299 for its proportionate share of the net pension 
liability for the LASERS plan. The net pension liability was measured as ofJune 30, 2022 and the total 
pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as 
of that date. The City's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the City's 
long-terrn share of contributions to the LASERS pension plan relative to the projected contributions of 
all participating employers, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2021, the City's proportion was 
basically 0.00086%, which was unchanged from June 30, 2022. The City paid 43.8% of total salaries 
as the employer contribution. 

For the year ended June 30, 2023, the City recognized pension expense of $8,613. 
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Non-employer contributions 

The System also receives insurance premium tax monies as additional ernployer contributions. The tax 
is considered support frorn a non-contributing entity and appropriated by the legislature each year based 
on an actuarial study. Non-employer contributions are recognid as revenue. The City recognized $0 
of non-employer contribution revenue. 

Sensitivity to Changes in Discount Rate 

The following presents the net pension liability of the participating employers calculated using the 
discount rate of 7.25%, as well as what the employers' net pension liability would be if it were 
calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower, or one percentage point higher than 
the current rate. 

Changes in Discount Rate 

1% Decrease 
6.25%  

C urrent 
Discount Rate 

7.25%  

1% Increase 
8.25%      

Employer Net Pension Liability $ 93,316 $ 66,299 $ 56,694 

Change in Net Pension Liability 

The changes in, net pension hability for the year ended June 30, 2022 were recognized as pension 
expense or benefit in the current reporting period except as follows: 

Differences between Expected and Actual Experience 

Differences between expected and actual experience with regard to economic or dernographic faetors in 
the measurement of the total pension liability were recognized in pension expense using the straight-
line amortization method over a c1osed period equal to the average of the expected re.maining service 
lives of all employees that are provided with pensions through the pension plan. 

Difference between Projected and Actual Investment Earnings 

Differences between projected and actual investment earnings on pension plan investments were 
recognized in pension expense using the straight-line arnortization method over a ciosed five-year 
period. 

A.t June 30, 2023, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions from the following sources: 
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Deferred Outflows 
of Resources 

Deferred Inflows 
of Resources 

Differences between expected 

and actual experience 181 

Changes in assurnptions 1,205 

Net difference between projected 

and actual earnings on pension 

plan investments 5,340 

Changes in proportion and differences 

between employer contributions and 

proportionate share of contributions 

Employer contributions subsequent 

to measurement date 8,634 

Total 15,360 $ 

The City reported a total of $7,401 as deferred outflow of resources related to pension contributions 
made subsequent to the measurement period ofJune 30, 2020, which will be recognized as a reduction 
in net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2021. 

Other amounts reported as defetTed outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions will be recognized as an increase (decrease) in pension expense as follows: 

Year Ended June 30: LASERS 

2024 $ 3,312 

2025 1,1 03 

2026 (1,350) 

2027 3,661 
Total 6.726 

Actuarial Methods and Assurnptions 

The net pension liability was measured as the portion of the present value of projected benefit 
payments to be provided through the pension plan to current active and inactive employees that is 
attributed to those employees' past periods of service, less the amount of the pension plan's fiduciary 
net position. 

The cornponents of the net pension liabi]ity of the System's employers as of June 30, 2022 are as 
follows: 
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2021 2022 
Total Pension Liability $179,961 $ 175,253 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position (131,741) (101,479) 
Employers' Net Pension Liability $ 48,220 $ 73,774 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of 

  

Total Pension Liabikty 72.80% 63.70% 

Actuarial Assumptions 

A summary of the actuarial methods and assumptions used in determining the total pension liability as 
of June 30, 2022 is as follows: 

Valuation date 

Actuarial cost rnethod 

Expected remaining service lives 

Investrnent rate of return 

Inflation rate 

Evlortality 

June 30, 2022 

Entry Age Normal 

2 years 

7.25% per annum 

2,3% per annum 

Non-disabled members - Mortality rates based 
on the RP-2000 Combined Heakhy Mortality 
Table with mortality improvement projected using 
the MP-2018 rnortality scale, applied on a fully 
generational basis. 
Disabled members - Mortality rates based on the RP-

 

2000 Disabled Retiree ivlortality Table, with no 
projection for mortality improvement. 

Termination, disability, and retirement assurnptions were 
projected based on a five-year (2009-2013) experience 
study of the System's members. 

Termination, Disability, and 
Retiremerit 
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Salary increases 

Cost of Living Adjustments 

Salary increases were projected based on a 2009-2013 
experience study of the System's members. The salary 
increase ranges for specific types of rnembers are: 

Lower Upper 
Member Type [ban Range 
Regular 3.0% 12.8% 
Judges 2.6% 5.1% 
Corrections 3.6% 13.8% 
Hazardous Duty 3.6% 13.8% 
Wildilk 3.6% 13.8% 

The present value of future retirement benefits is based on 

benefits currently being paid by the System and includes 
previously granted cost of living increases. The projected 

benefit payments do not include provisions for potentia] 
future increases not yet authorteed by the Board ofTrustees 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-
block method in which best-estimates ranges of expected fu€ure real rates of return (expected returns, 
net of pension pJan investment expense and i n flation) are developed for each rnaj or asset c]ass. These 
ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expeoed future 
real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation of 2.3% 
and an adjustment for the effect of rehalancing/di versification. The resulting expected long-term rate of 
return is 8.34% for 2022. Best estimates of geometric real rates of return for each major asset class 
included in the System's target asset allocation as of June 30, 2022 are summarized in t.he following 
table: 

Expected Long Term Real Rates of Retum 

Asset Class 2022 
Cash 0.39% 
Do mest ic Equity 4.57% 
international Equity 5.76% 
Domestic Fixed tncome 1.48% 
International Fixed Income 5.04% 
Alternative investments 8.30% 

Total Fund 5.9 % 
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Discount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.25%. The projection of" cash flows 
used to deterrnine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the 
current contribution rates and that contributions from participating ernployers will be rnade at the 
actuarially deterrnined rates approved by PRSAC taking into consideration the recommendation of the 
System's actuary. Based on those assumptions, the System's tiduciary net position was projected to be 
available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-
term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to allperiods of projected benefit 
payments to determine the total pension liability. 

Change in Net Pension Liability 

The changes in the net pension liability for the year ended June 30, 2022 were recognized as 
pension expense or benefit in the current reporting period except as follows: 

Differences between Expected and Actual Experience 

Differences between expected and actual experience with regard to economic or dernographic 
factors in the measurement of the total pension liability were recognized in pension expense using 
the straight-line amortization method over a closed period equal to the average of the expected 
remaining service lives of all employees that are provided with pensions through the pension plan. 

Differences between Projected and Actual Investment Earnings 

Di fferences between projected and actual investrnent earnings on pension plan investments were 
recognized in pension expense using the straight-line amortization method over a closed five-year 
period_ 

Contributions - Proportionate Share/Change in Proportionate Share 

Differences between contributions remitted to the System and the employer's proportionate share are 
recognized in pension expense using the straight line amortization method over a closed period equal to 
the average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are provided with a pension 
through the pension plan. 

Changes in the employer's proportionate share of the collective net pension liability and collective 
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources since the prior measurement date are 
recognized in employer's pension expense using the straight-line amortization method over a closed 
period equal to the average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are provided 
pensions through the pension plan. 
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Estirnates 

The process of preparing the schedules of employer allocations and schedules of pension amounts in 

conforrnity with accounting principles generally acc.epted in the United States of America requires the 

use of estirnates and assumptions regarding certain types of assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses. 

Accordingly, actual results rnay differ from estimated arnounts. 

Retirement System Audit Reports 

The Louisiana State Employees' Retirement Systern has issued stand-alone audit reports on their 
financial statement.s for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021. Access to the reports can be found on 
the Louisiana Legislative Auditor's website, www.11a.la.gov and the System's website, 
hupliwww,lasersonline.orOsite.php. 

Pension Summary 

Net Pension 
Liability 

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources 

Deferred 
lnflows of 
Resources 

Municipai Employees' Retirement System $ 3,917,463 $ 1,465,512 $ 126,607 

Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System 3,468,627 1,282,995 300,847 

Firefighters' Retirement System 2,571,465 1,279,310 612,613 

Louisiana State Employees' Retirement Systein 66,299 15,360 

 

Total )0,023,854 4,043,177 1,040,067 

Portion Applicable to Business Type Activities 8)0,006 368,490 143,895 

Portion Applicable to Governmental Type Activities $ 9,213,848 $ 3,674,687 $ 896,L72 

NOTE 9 RESTRICTED ASSETS 

Proprietary Fund Type: 
Restricted assets applicable to customers' deposits at June 30, 2023 are as follows: 

Customers' deposits: 

Cash  $ 356,591 

  $ 356,591 

 74  



CJTY OF EUNICE, LOU[SIANA 

Notes of Financial Statements 

NOTE 10 DUE FROM/TO OTHER FUNDS 

Due From 
Other Funds 

Due to 
Other Funds 

General Fund $ 126,910 $ 133,366 
Special Revenue Funds - 

  

Sales Tax Fund 54,761 

 

St. Landry & Acadia Parish Fire District 

 

122,158 

Court Wimess Fees Fund 807 

 

Enterprise Fund - 
UtiRty Fund 73,046 

  

$ 255,524 $ 255,524 

NOTE 11 ENTERPRISE FUND OPERAT[ONS 

Operations of the City of Eunice Utility System consist of a gas distribution system and sewer utility 
system. Operating results of the individual utilities for the year ended June 30, 2023 are as follows: 

 

Gas Department Sewer Department 
Operating Revenues $ 1,642,043 $ 1,280,865 

Operating Expenses 1,814,183 1,853,246 

Operating Income (loss) $ (172,140) $ (572,381) 

Operating expenses above include costs which cannot be directly associated with a single department; 
thus these expenses have been allocated on the basis of gross utility sales. For the fiscal year ended 
June 30, .2023, the Gas and Sewer Utilities provided services to 3,767 and 5,774 customers, 
respectively. 

NOTE 13 PENDING LITIGATION 

Various lawsuits are presently pending against the City of Eunice. In all cases where damages are 
being sought from the City, attorneys for the City are of the opinion that any judgements rendered in 
favor of the plaintiffs or payments resulting from the compromise settlernents, if any, will be within 
the limits of the various insurance coverages carried by the City. ln one Iawsuit, which may not be 
covered by insurance, the City attorney is unable to estimate liability to the City of Eunice, if any. 
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General Fund 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
Year Ended June 30, 2023 

Revenues: 

Original 
Budget 

Final 
Budget Actuai 

Favorabk 
(Unkvorable) 

    

Taxes $1,551,050 $1,550,120 $ 1,589,862 $ 39,742 
Licenses and permits 470,000 535,000 598,518 63,518 
Intergovernmentalrevenues 2,106,000 2,125,500 2,068,446 (57,054) 
Fines and forfeitures 12,000 15,000 28,173 13,173 
Liberty Cajun Music Show 52,760 255,090 265,661 10,57) 
1nterest 

  

5,979 5,979 
Miscellaneous 832,200 622,800 519,593 (103,207) 

Total revenues 5,024,010 5,103,510 5,076,233 (27,277) 

Expend itures 

    

Current - 

    

General government 1,849,200 1,897,127 2,083,844 (186,717) 
Public safety 4,227,100 4,223,750 4,135,155 88,595 
Public works 985,250 1,121,200 1,121,374 (174) 
Health and welfare 30,400 52,400 21,174 31,226 
Culture and recreation 822,250 1,025,795 1,070,522 (44,727) 
Other 84,500 98,500 93,860 4,640 

Debt service - 

    

Principal retirement 

  

49,453 

 

Interest 

  

36,565 

 

Total expenditures 7,998,700 8,418,772 8,611,947 (107,157) 

Excess (deficiency) of 
revenues over expenditures (2,974,690) (3,315,262) (3,535,714) (220,452) 

Other financing sources (uses): 

    

Operating transiers in 3,498,000 4,737,700 3,131,170 (1,606,530) 
Operating transfers out 

  

(118,011) (118,011) 
Total othex anancing sources (uses) 3 498,000 4,737,700 3,013,159 (1,724,541) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
and other sources over 
expenditures and other uses 523,310 1,422,438 (522,555) (1,944,993) 

Fund balances, beginnirig 2,624,342 2,554,991 2,554,991 

 

Fund balances, ending $3,147,652 $ 3,977,429 $ 2,032,436 $(1,944,993) 

See accompanying notes to Required Supplementary information. 
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Budgetary Comparison Schedule 

Year Endcd June 30. 2023 

Revenues: 

Original 
Budget 

Final 
Budget Actual 

Variance - 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

    

Taxes $ 5,880,000 $6,982,500 $ 7,048,092 $ 65,592 
Intergovernmental revenues 5,000 555,000 598,476 43,476 
Other 

 

I 00,000 

 

(100,000) 
Interest 18,000 19,600 21,296 1,696 

Total revenues 5,903,000 7,657,100 7,667,864 10,764 

Expend itures: 

    

Current - 

    

General governrnent 79,700 321,750 94,573 227,177 
Culture and recreation 249,000 370,000 505,899 (135,899) 
Public safety 

  

47,568 (47,568) 
Public works 

  

967,875 (967,875) 
Capital outlay 1,105,000 1,508,150 1,451,350 56,800 
Debt service - 

    

Principal retirement 62,500 62,500 162,510 (100,010) 
Interest 17,000 17,000 22,564 (5,564) 

Total expenditures 1,513,200 2,279.400 3,252,339 (972,939) 

Excess of revenues 
over expenditures 4,389,800 5,377,700 4,415,525 (962,175) 

Other financing sources (uses): 

    

Procecds from sale of assets 

  

27,585 27,585 
Issuance of debt 

  

707,217 707,217 
Operating transfers out (4,028,000) (5,357,700) (3,705,802) 1,651,898 

Total other firiancing sources (uses) (4,028,000) (5,357,700) (2,971,000) 2,386,700 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and 
other sources over expenditures and 
other uses 361,800 20,000 1,444,525 1,424,525 

Fund balances, beginning 4,834,024 5,000,396 5,000,396 

 

Fund balances, ending $5,195,824 $ 5,020,396 $6,444,921 $ 1,424,525 

See accompanying notes to Required Supp}ementary Information. 
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CITY OF EUNI10E, LOUISEANA 
St. Landry & Acadia Parish Fire District 

Budgetaiy Comparison Schedule 
Year Ended June 30. 2023 

Revenues: 

Original 
Budget 

 

Final 
Budget Actual 

Variance - 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

     

Intergovernmental revenues 190,000 $ I 90,000 $ 160,155 $ (29,845) 
Interest 100 

 

350 729 379 
Total revenues 190,100 

 

190,350 160,884 (29,466) 

Expenditures 

     

Current - 

     

General government 
Public safety 90,100 

 

53,850 140,468 (86,618) 
Total expenditures 90,100 

 

53,850 140,468 (86,618) 

Excess (deficiency) o f revenues 
over expenditures 100,000 

 

136,500 20,416 57,152 

Other financing sources (uses): 

     

Operating transfers in 
Operating transfers out (100,000) 

 

120,000 45,990 €74,010) 
Total other financing uses (100,000) 

 

120,000 45,990 (74,010) 

Excess (deficiency) o f revenues 
and other sources over 
expenditures and other uses 

  

256,500 66,406 (190,094) 

Fund balances, beginning 2,375 

 

(40,566) (40,566) 

 

Fund balances, ending 2,375 $ 215,934 $ 25,840 $ (190,094) 

See accompanying notes to Required Supplementary Information, 
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CITY OF EUNICE, LOUISIANA 

Schedule of Employer's Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023 

Employer 

Propori ionate 

of the 

Net Pension 

Liability 

(Asset) 

Employer 

Proportionate 

Share of the 

Net Pension 

Liability 

(Asset)  

Proportionate 

Share of the 

Net Pension 

(Asset) as a 

Percentage of 

Covcred 

Payroll  

Plan Fiduciary 

Net Position 

as a Percentage 

of the Total 

Pension Liability  

Covered 

Payroll 

Fiscal 

Year 

MERS 2015 

2016 

2017 

2018 

2019 
2020 

2021 

2022 

2023 

MPERS 2015 

2016 

2017 

2018 

2019 
2020 

2021 

2022 

/023  

0.965991% 

0. 966778Vo 

0.980160% 

0.965789% 

1.026833% 

0.904617% 

0.844050% 

0.828885% 

0.943232% 

0.432919% 

0.340775% 

0,392600% 

0.381941% 

0,393876% 

0.352127% 

0.322396% 

0.371918% 

0.339337% 

$ 2,479,162 

3,453,482 

4,017,392 

4,040,303 

4.251,785 

3,780,088 

3,649,173 

2,305,546 

3,917,463 

2,708,377 

2,669,616 

3,679,768 

3,334.507 

3,329,852 

3, l 97,903 

2,979,690 

1,982,526 

3,468,627 

$1,572,512 

1,699,093 

1,746,485 

1,437,914 

1,874,707 

1,674,619 

1,721,359 

1,641,329 

,807,746 

1,099,659 

926,252 

1,098,639 

1,140,214 

1,362,380 

1,099,656 

995,794 

1,134,655 

1,047,580  

157.66% 

203.25% 

230.03% 

280.98% 

226.80% 

225.73% 

211.99% 

140.4701© 

216.70% 

246,29% 

288.22% 

334.94% 

292.45% 

286.47% 

290.81% 

299.23% 

174.73% 

331.11%  

76.94% 

66.18% 

62,17% 

62.49% 

63.94% 

64.68% 

64.52% 

77.82% 

69.56% 

75.10% 

70.73% 

66.42% 

70.72% 

71.88% 

71.01% 

70.95% 

84.09% 

70.79% 

This schedule will contain ten, years of historical information once such information beeornes available. 
The amounts presented have a measurement date of the previous year end of the plan. 

See accompanying notes to Required Supplementary [nformation. 
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CITY OF EUNICE, LOUISIANA 
Schedule of Employer's Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability (Continued) 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023 

Proportionate 

Share of the 
Employer Employer Net Pension 

Proportionate Proportionate Liability Plan Fiduc iary 

of the Share of the (Asset) as a Net Position 

Net Pension Net Pension Percentage of as a Percentage 

Fiscal Liability Liability Covered It's Covered of the Total 

Year (Asset) (Asset) Payroll Payroll Pension Liability  

FRS 2015 0.332973% 1,481,701 867,283 170.84% 76.02% 

2016 0.331590% 1,789,628 704,691 253.96% 72.45% 

2017 0.322836% 2,111,639 678,150 311.38% 68.16% 

2018 0.340832% 1,953,598 796,123 245.39% 76.55% 

2019 0.355897% 2,047,057 847,332 241.59% 74.76% 

2020 0.341 I 74% 2,136,401 824,574 259.09% 73.96% 

2021 0.347222% 2,406,786 864,303 278,47% 72.61% 

2022 0,37 [868% 1,317,$45 932,750 141.29% 86.78% 

2023 0.364680% 2,571.465 953,669 269.64% 74.67% 

LASERS 2015 0.000$80% 55,213 17,212 320,78% 73.99% 

2016 0.000960% 65,158 17,212 378,56% 62.67% 

2017 0.000940% 73,657 17,212 427.94% 57.70% 

2018 0.000970% 67,925 17,212 394,64% 62.50% 

201 9 0,000920% 62.402 17,212 364.54% 64.49% 

2020 0.000890% 64,697 17,212 375.88% 62.90% 

202 I 0.000890% 73,774 17,212 428.62% 58.00% 
2022 0.000890% 48,220 17,212 280.15% 72.80% 

2023 0,000890% 66,299 17,212 385.19% 63.70% 

This schedule will contain ten years of historical information once such information becomes available. 
The amotmts presented have a measurement date of the previous year end of the p]an. 

See accompanying notes to Required Supplemental),  Information. 
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CITY OF EUNICE, LOUISIANA 
Schedule of Ernployer's Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023 

Fiscal 

Year 
M ERS 2015 

2016 
2017 
2018 
2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 

2023 

MPERS 2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 
2019 

2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 

Contractually 

Required 
Contribution 

$ 294,884 

349,677 
398,626 
.462,786 
435,401 

446,635 
474,568 
524,124 
504,704 

345,796 
294,230 
362,912 
357,782 
356,814 
328,240 
385,580 

311,655 
316,362 

Contributions 
in Relation 

to Contractual 
Required 

Contribution 

$ 294,884 $ 

349,677 
398,626 
462,786 

435,401 
446,635 
474,568 
524,124 
504,704 

345,796 
294,230 
362,912 
357,782 
356,814 
328,240 
385,580 
311,655 
316,362 

$1,537,227 
1,765,280 
1,751,763 
,869,843 

1,674,619 
,609,496 

1,608,706 
1,776,692 
1,710,859 

1,115,181 
996,046 

1,143,297 
1,163,519 
1,106,403 

1,009,970 
1,142,457 
1,047,579 
1,012,359 

Contributions 
as a Percent 
of Covered 

Payroll 
19.18% 
19.80% 
22.75% 
24.75% 
26.00% 
27.75% 

29.50% 
29.50% 
29.50% 

31.00% 
29,53% 
31.75% 
30.75% 
32.25% 
32.50% 

33.75% 
29.75% 
31.25% 

Contribution 
Deficiency Covered 
(Excess) Payroll  

This schedule will contain ten years of historical information once such inlbrmation becomes available. 

See accompanying notes to Required Supplementaty Information. 
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CITY OF EUNICE, LOUISIANA 
Schedule of Employer's Proportionatc Share of Net Pension Liability (Continued) 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023 

Fiscal 
Year 

FRS 2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 

2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 
2023  

Contractually 
Required 

Contribution  
212,619 
198,359 
200,937 
224,543 
218,512 
235,844 
300,812 
317,112 
292,525 

Contributions 
in Re lat ion 

to Contractual 
Required 

Contribution 
212,619 
198,359 
200,937 
224,543 
218,512 
235,844 
300,812 
317,112 
292,525 

Contribution 
Deficiency Covered 
(Excess) Payroll 

726,902 
727,923 
795,794 
847,33 I 
824,575 
864,447 
932,751 
941,129 
879,776 

Contributions 
as a Percent 
of Covered 

Payroll 
29.25% 
29.25% 
25.25% 
26.50% 
26.50% 
27.75% 
32.25% 
33.75% 
33.25% 

LASERS 2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 
2019 
2020 
202 I 
2022 
2023 

7,143 
6,835 
6,317 
6,816 
6,721 
7,229 
7,505 
7,401 
8.634 

7,143 
6,835 
6,317 
6,816 
6,721 
7,229 
7,505 
7,401 
8,634 

17,212 
17,212 
17,212 
17,212 
17,212 
17,212 
17,212 
17.212 
19,712 

41.50% 
39.71% 
36.70% 
39,60% 
39.000/0 
42,00% 
43. 60% 
43.60% 
43.80% 

This schedule will contain ten years of historical information once such information becomes available. 

See accompanying notes to Required Supplementary Information. 
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CITY OF EUNICE, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Required Supplementary Information 

NOTE 1 LEGAL COMPLIANCE - BLTDGETS 

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in these financial 
statements: 

The City Clerk prepares a proposed budget and submits same to the Mayor and Council no later than, 
fifteen days prior to the beginning of each fiscal year. 

A surnmary of the proposed budget is published and the public is notified that the proposed budget is 
available for public inspection. At ihe same time, a public hearing is called. 

A public hearing is held on the proposed budget at least ten days after publication of the call for the 
hearing. 

After the holding of the public hearing and completion of all action necessary to finalize and 
implement the budget, the budget is adopted through passage of an ordinance prior to the 
commencernent of the fiscal year for which the budget is being adopted. 

Budgetary amendments involving the transfer of funds from one department, program or 
function to another or involving increases in expenditures resulting from revenues exceeding 
amounts eslimated require the appruval or the Council. 

Budgets for all funds are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles 
of the United States of America. Budgeted amounts are as origingy adopted or as amended from 
time to time by the Board of Aldermen. The budget was amended prior to the fiscal year end June 
30, 2023. 

NOTE 2 STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY 

Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations in Individual Funds: 

 

Budget Actual Variance 
General Fund $8,418,772 $8,611,947 $ (107,157) 
St. Landry Acadia 53,850 140,468 (86.618) 
Sales Tax Fund 2,279,400 3„252,339 (972,939) 
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CITY OF EUNICE, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Required Supplementary Information (Continued) 

NOTE 3 PENSION PLAN 

Changes of Benefit Terrns 

For MERs, FR.S, MPERS, and LASERS, there were no changes of benefit terms for the year ended June 
30, 2O2. 

Changes of Assumptions 

Changes of assumptions about future economic or demographic faclors or of other inputs were 
recognized in pension expense using the straight line amortization method over a closed period equal to 
the average of the expected remaining service lives of al( ernployees that are provided with pensions 
through the pension p(an. These assumptions include the rate of investment return, mortality of plan 
members, rate of salary increase, rates of retirement, rates of termination, rates of disability, and various 
other factors that have an irnpact on the cost of the plans. 

Munici pal Employees' Retirement System  
For the actuarial valuation for the year ended June 30, 2022, the discount rate was unchanged frorn 6.85% 
to 6.85%. 

Firefighters' Retirement System  
For the actuarial valuation for the year ended June 30, 2022, the discount rate was reduced from 7.00% to 
6.90%. 

Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System 
For the actuarial valuation for the year ended June 30, 2022, the discount rate was unchanged from 6.75% 
to 6.75%. 

Louisiana St.ate Employees' Retirernent Svstem 
For the actuarial valuation for the year ended June 30, 2022, the discount rate was reduced from 7.40% to 
7.25%. 
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
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OTHER FINANCIAI.. INFORMATION 



NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

88 



CITY OF EUNICE, LOUISIANA 

Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

Balance Sheet 

June 30, 2023 

ASSETS 

Special 

Revenue 

Funds 

Capital 

Project 

Funds 

Total 

Nonmajor 

Governrnental 

Funds 

   

Cash and cash equivalents $ 84,114 $ 45,6( 8 $ 129,732 

GrantReceivables 

 

119,875 119,875 

Due horn other finds 807 

 

807 

Total assets $ 84,921 $ 165,493 $ 250,414 

LIABILITSES AND FUN D EQUITY 

   

Accounts payable 

 

$ 119,875 $ 119,875 

Total liabilities 

 

119,875 119,875 

Fund balances: 

   

Assigned 84,921 45,618 130,539 

Total fund balances 84,921 45,618 130,539 

Total liabilities and tiind balances $ 84,92 l 165,493 $ 250,414 
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CITY OF EUNICE, LOUISLANA 

Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 

Fund .Balances 

Year Ended June 30, 2023 

Revenues: 

Special 

Revenue 

Funds 

Cap[tal 

Project 

Funds 

Total 

Nonrnajor 

Govermnental 

Funds 

   

Intel-go ven-unenta I revenues $ 3,580 $ 199,433 $ 203,013 

Fines, forfeitures and bonds I,920 

 

1,920 

laterest 533 195 728 

Total revenues; 6,033 199,628 205,661 

Expenditures: 

   

Current - 

   

General government 101 

 

101 

Capital outlay 

 

199,433 199,433 

Total expenditures 101 199,433 199,534 

Excess (deficiency) of 

revenues over expenditures 5,932 195 6,127 

Fund balances, beginning 78,989 45,423 124,412 

Fund balances, ending $ 84,921 $ 45,618 130,539 
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NONMAJOR SPECIAL. REVENUE FUNDS 

Special revenue funds are used to aceount for specific revenues that are legally restricted to expenditures for 
particular purpose. 

PUBLIC SAFETY TESTING FUND 

To account for receipts and expenditures associated with court fees collected in connection with drug and alcohol 
related driving offenses. 

COURT APPEARANCE BOND FUND 

To account f©r receipts and expenditures associated with the receipt of appearance bonds collected on arrests and 
traffic citations. 

WITNESS FEES FUND 

To account for receipts and expenditures associated with witness fees collected by City Court. 
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CITY OF EUNICE, LOUISIANA 

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds 

Combining Balance Sheet 

June 30, 2023 

ASS ETS 

Pub lic 

S a fety 

Testing 

Fund 

Court 

Appearance 

Bond 

Fund 

Witness 

Fees 

Fund Totals 

    

C ash $18,093 $ 34,396 $31,625 $ 84,114 

Due from other funds 

  

807 807 

Total assets $18,093 $ 34,396 $32,432 $ 84,921 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

    

Accounts payable $ $ $ - $ 
Due to other funds 

    

Total liabilities 

    

Fund balances: 

    

Assigned 18,093 34,396 32,432 84,921 
Total fund balances 18,093 34,396 32,432 84,921 

Total liabilities and fund balances $18,093 $ 34,396 $32,432 $ 84,921 
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CITY OF EUNICE, LOUISIANA 

Nonrnajor Special Revenue Funds 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 

Year Ended June 30, 2023 

Revenues: 

Public 

Safety 

Testing 

Fund 

Court 

Appearance 

Bond 

Fund 

Witness 

Fees 

_ Fund Totals 

    

Intergovernmental revenues $ 428 $ $ 3,152 $ 3,580 

Fine, forkitures and bonds 

 

1.920 

 

1,920 

Interest 281 133 119 533 

Total revenues 709 2,053 3,271 6,033 

Expend itures 

Current - 

General government 

  

101 101 

Totalexpenditures 

  

101 101 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 

over expenditures 709 2,053 3,170 5,932 

Fund balances, beginning 17,384 32,343 29,262 78,989 

Fund balances, ending $18,093 $ 34,396 $ 32,432  $ 84,921 
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NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS 

Capital Project funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally restricted to expenditures for 
capital projects. 
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CITY OF EUNiCE, LOUISIANA 

Nonrnajor Capital Projects Fund 
Balance Sheet 
June 30, 2023 

ASSETS 
Cash $ 45,618 

Grant Receivables 119,875 

Total assets 165A93 

LI ABIL1T.1 ES AN D F UN D BALANC ES 
Liabiht ies: 

Accounts payable 
Total liabilities 

$ 119,875 
119,875 

Fund balances: 
Assigned 

Total fund balances 
45,618 
45,618   

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 165,493 
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CITY OF EUNICE, LOUISIANA 
Norimajor CapitaI Projects Fund 

Statement of Revenues, Expend itures and Changes in Fund Balances 
Year Ended June 30, 2023 

Revenues: 
intergovernmental revenues $ 199,433 
Interest 195 

Total revenues 199,628 

Expenditures 
Current - 

General government 
Capital Outlay 

Total expenditures 

199,433 

199,433 
  

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures l 95 

Fund balances, beginning 45,423 

Fund balances, ending $ 45,618 
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ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

UTILITY FUND 

The fund is to account for the city's operation of the gas and sewer departmen€s. 



CITY OF EUNICE, LOUISIANA 

Enterprise Fund 
Utility Fund 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Net Position 

Year Ended June 30, 2023 

Operating revenues: 

Gas 
Department 

Sewer 

Department Total 

   

Charges for services $ 1,604,641 $ 1,261,116 $ 2,865,757 

Other billings to customers 37,402 19,749 57,151 

Total operating revenues 1,642,043 1,280,865 2,922,908 

Operating expenses 

   

Payroll and related benefits 287,566 373,668 661,234 

Natural gas purchases 1,044,389 

 

1,044,389 

Supplies and materials 73,314 159,861 233,175 

Repairs and maintenance 92,003 547,101 639,104 

Office expenses 35,882 10,102 45,984 

Professional fees 16,957 16,956 33,914 

Insurance - general 76,035 28,528 104,563 
Depreciation 91,053 273,862 364,915 
Group insurance 31,81 I 45,090 76,901 
Bad debts 9,000 

 

9,000 
Permits 

 

42,636 42,636 
Utilities and telephone 13,625 290,381 304,006 
Amortization expense-right of use 21.526 9,226 30,752 
Interest expense 1,554 666 2,220 
Miscetlaneous 19.468 55.169 74.637 

Total operating expenses 1,814,183 1,853,246 3,667,430 

Operating income (loss) $ (172 140) $ (572,381) (744,522) 

Nonoperating income (loss): 

   

interest earned on investments 

  

2.728 
Nonemployer pension contribution 

  

10,630 
'fotal nonoperating income 

  

13,358 

income before operating transfers 

  

(731,164) 

Operating transfers: 

   

Operating transfers in 

  

857,962 
Operating transfers out 

  

(211,309) 
Total operating transfers 

  

646,653 

Change in net position 

  

(84,51 1) 

Net position, beginning 

  

5,268,314 

Net position, ending 

  

$ 5,183,803 
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INTERNAL CONTROL 
AND 

COMPLIANCE 
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Y1GE, TUJAGUE  NOEL 
A CORPORATION OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

151 N. 2w2 STREET 
P. O. BOX 1006 

EUNICE. LOUISIANA 70535 
SHIRLEY VIGE, JR., C.PA. TELEPHONE. 
FRANK G. TUJAGU E. C P.A. 337-457-9324 
DOMINIQUE M. NOEL. C.P.A. FA.X: 

337-457-8743 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

The Honorable Mayor Scoit Fontenot 
and Nlembers of the Council 

C.ity of Eunice, Louisiana 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Governmen/ A/Oiling Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Eunice, Louisiana, as of 
and for the year ended June 30, 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
cornprise City of Eunice, Louisiana's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated 
December 19, 2023. 

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In plan.ning and performing our audit of the financia] statements, we considered City of Eunice, Louisiana's 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to deterrnine the audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of City of Eunice, Louisiana's internal control. Accordingly, we do 
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of City of Eunic.e, Louisiana's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow rnanagement or 
ernployees, in the norrnal course of perforrning their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material wealmess is a deficien.cy, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements 
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a. 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough 
to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal con.trol was for the lirnited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section 
and was not designed to identify ail deficiencies in internai control that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that vvere not 
identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal eontro] that 
we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
We did identify certain deficie€tcies in internal contro], described in the accompanying schedule of findings and 
questioned costs as items #2023-001 through 142023-003, which we consider to be significant deficiencies. 
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether City of Eunice, Louisiana's financial statements are free 
frorn rnaterial misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contrae€s, and grant agreernents, noncompliance with which could havc a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on cornpliance with those 
provisions was riot an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of 
our tests disclosed instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under 
Government Auditing Standards and which are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and 
questioned costs as items #2023-001 through 42023-003. 

City of Eurri€e, Louisiana's Response to Findings 

City of Eunice, Louisiana's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying 
schedule of findings and questioned costs. City of Eunice, Louisiana's response was not subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of th is report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on 
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with G-overnment Auditing 
Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this cominunication is not 
suitable for any other purpose. 

V 
Vige, ujague & NA, CPA's 
December 19, 2023 
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FRANK TUJAGUE. C.P.A. 
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337-457-9324 
FAX: 

337-45.7-8743 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR 
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE 

REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

The Honorable Mayor Scott Fontenot 
and Members of the Council 
City of Eunice. Louisiana 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Fedcral Program 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited City of Eunice, Louisiana's compliance with the types of compliance requirements identified as 
subject to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of City 
of Eunice, Louisiana's rnajor federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2023. City of Eunice, Louisiana's 
major federal programs are identified in the. summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule 
of findings and questioned costs. 

ln our opinion, City of Eunice;  Louisiana complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs 
for the year ended June 30, 2023. 

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

We conducted our audit of cornpliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Cornptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of 
Federal Regulations Part 200, Unithrm Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements 
for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance 
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Cornpliance section of our report. 

We are required to be indepezident of City ofEunice, Louisiana and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in 
accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evi dence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each rnajor federal 
prograrn. Our audit does not provide a legal deterrnination of City of Eunice, Louisiana's compliance with the 
cornpliance requirements referred to above. 
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Responsibilities of illanagement for Compliance 

Management is responsible for cornpliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirernents of laws, 
statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions or contracts or gram agreements applicable to City of Eunice, 
Louisiana's federal prograrns. 

A uditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the cornpliance 
requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion on City of Eunice, 
Louisiana's compliance bascd on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute 
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing 
standards, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance wiil always detect material 
noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher 
than for that resulting from error, as fraud rnay involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred 
to above is considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would 
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about City of Eunice, Louisiana's 
compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a whole. 

In perforrning an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Go»ernment Auditing 
Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of rnaterial noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, ort a test basis, 
evidence regarding City of Eunice, Louisiana's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to 
above and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

• Obtain an understanding of City of Eunice, Louisiana's internal control over compliance relevant to the 
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report 
on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of City or Eunice, Louisiana's internal control over 
compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and materiaJ weak.nesses in internal control 
over compliance that we identified during the audit. 

Report on Internal Control over Compliance 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type or compliance requirement of a federal 
program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that 
material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or 
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detected and corrected, on a tirnely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or a cornbination of deficiencies, in internal control over cornpliance vvith a type of cornpliance 
requirement o fa federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, 
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over cornpliance was for the lirnited purpose described in the Auditor's 
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in 
internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control 
over compliance. Given these lirnitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control 
over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were not identified. 

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over 
cornpliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scopc of our testing of 
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform 
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Vige, Tujague & No61, CPA's 
December 19, 2023 
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CITY OF EUNICE, LOUISIANA 

Schedule of Expendittres of Federal Awards 

June 30, 2023 

Federal Grantor/Pass through 

Grantor/Program Title 

Assistance 

Listing 

Number 

Federal 

Expenditures 

Department of Transportation 

  

Airport Improvement Program 20.106 $ 586,570 

Department of Housing and Urban Development 

  

Community Development Block Grants/State's 

Progarn and Non-Entitlermnt Grants in Hawaii 14.228 199,433 

Department of Treasury 

  

Local Assistance and Tnbal Consistancy Fund 21.032 208,712 

Coronavinis State and Local Fiscal Recovery 

Funds 21.027 2,409,263 

United States Department ofJustice 

Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant 16.738 4,237 

  

$ 3,408,215 

NOTE A. — BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

The accornpanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of City of 
Eunice, Louisiana and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting, The information in this schedule is 
presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Repdations Part 200.502, 
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform 
Guidarice). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of City of Eunice, Louisiana, 
it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of City of 
Eunice, Louisiana. 

NOTE B — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTJNG POLICIES 

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are 
recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of 
expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reirnbursement. City of Eunice, Louisiana has elected not to 
use the 10-percent de rninimis indirect cost ratc allowed under the Uniform Guidance. 
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CITY OF EUNICE, LOUISIANA 

Schedule of Findings and Responses 
Year Ended June 30, 2023 

We have audited the financial statements of City of Eunice, Louisiana as of and for the year ended June 30, 2023, 
and have issued our report thereon dated December 19, 2023. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial 
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of €he United States, Our 
audit of the financial statements as of June 30, 2023, resulted in an unmodified opinion. 

Section I. Summary of Auditor's Reports 

a. Report on Internal Control and Compliance Material to the Financial Statements 

Internal Control 
Material Weaknesses Yes X No Significant Deficiencies  X  Yes No 
Cornpliance 
Noncornpliance Material to financial Statement Yes . X  No 

Federal Awards 

Internal Control over Major Programs 
Material Weaknesses Yes  X . No Significant Deficiencies Yes X No 

Type of auditor's report issued in cornpliance for major programs: 
Unmodified. 

Audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2CFR Section 200.516(a) are reported in this 
schedule. 

Identification of major program: 

Assistance Listing Name of Federal Pro2ram  
21.027 Coronavirus State and Local 

Fiscal Recovery Funds 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs: 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes  X  No 

106 



CITY OF EUNICE, LOUISIANA 

Schedule of Findings and Responses (continued) 
Year Ended June 30, 2023 

Section U. Financial Statement Findings 

42023-001 Segregation of  Accounting Functions  

Condition: The City of Eunice did not have adequate segregation of functions within the accounting system. 

Criteria: SAS109, Understanding the Entity and its Environment ond Assessing the Risks of Material 
Misstatement, AU314.43 defines internal control as follows: 

"Internal control is a process, affected by those charged with governance, management, and 
other personnel, designed to provide reasonable assurance about the achievement of 
objectives with regard to reliability of financial reporting, effectiveness and efficiency of 
operations, and compliance with applicable laws and regulations." 

Additionally, Statements on Standards for Attestation Engagements (SSAE) AT501.03 states: 

"An entity's internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures 
that pertain to an entity's ability to rccord, process, surnmarize, and report financial data 
consistent with the assertions embodied in either annual financial statements or interim 
financial statements, or both." 

Cause: The cause of the condition is the fact that the City does not have a sufficient numbe.r of staff 
performing administrative and financial duties so as to provide adequate segregation of accounting 
and financial duties. 

Effect: Failure to adequately segregate accounting and financial functions increases the risk that errors 
and/or iuegularities including fraud and/or defalcations may occur and not be prevented andlor 
detected. 

Recornmendation: Due to the size of the operation and the cost-benefit of additional personnel, it may not be 
feasible to achieve complete segregation of duties. 

Response: It is not cost effective to achieve cornplete segregation of duties within the accounting function. No 
corrective action is considered necessary. 

42023-002 Budget Variance 

Condition: The City's actual expenditures in the Sales Tax Fund exceeded budgeted expenditures by greater 
than 5%. The City's actual expenditures exceeded budgeted expenditures and budgeted revenues 
exceeded actual revenues by greater than 5% in the St. Landry & Acadia Parish Fire District Fund. 
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CITY OF EUNICE, LOUISIANA 

Schedule of Findings and Responses (continued) 
Year Ended June 30, 2023 

Criteria: When total actual expenditures exceed total budgeted expenditures by 5% or more and/or when 
total revenues fail to rneet total budgeted revenues by 5% or more or there has been a change in 
operation upon which the original adopted budget was developed, the City shall adopt a budget 
amendment in an open meeting to reflect such a change. 

Cause: The cause of the condition is that the City did not make the necessary amendments to the budget 
prior to the year end. 

Effect: Failure to properly amend the budget results in variances beyond the 5% of budgeted revenues and 
expenses and result.s in noncompliance with budget laws. 

Recommendation: We recomrnend that the City make the necessary am.endments to the budget prior to year 
cnd for changes in revenues and expenditures incurred. 

Response: The City will make the necessary amendments to the budget prior to year end for changes in 
estimated expenses. 

142023-003 Timely Preparation of Bank Rcconci]iations 

Condition: The City of Eunice did not reconcile bank accounts on a timely basis. 

Criteria: All ban_k reconciliations should be prepared on a timely basis, as statements are received from the 
bank. 

Cause: The Clerk was unable to prepare reconciliations in a timely manner due to unexpected circumstances 
arising and a shortage of staff. 

Effect : Untimely preparation of bank reconciliations results in a de]ay in financial reporting and rnay also 
allow fraudulent activity to go undetected. 

Recommendation: I3ank reconciliations should be prepared on a monthly basis, as statements are available 
from the bank. 

Response: In the future, bank reconciliations will be prepared in a timely manner, as statements are received 
from the bank. 

Section Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 

None. 
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C1TY OF EUNICE, LOUISIANA 

Status of Prior Years Findings and Questioned Costs 
Year Ended June. 30, 2023 

#2022-001 Segregation of Accounting Functions 

Condition: The City of Eunice did not have adequate segregation of functions within the accounting systern. 

Criteria: SAS109, Understanding the Entity and its Environment and Assessing the Risks of Material 
Misstatement, A.U314.43 defines internal control as follows: 

"Internal control is a process, affected by those charged with governance, management, and 
other personnel, designed to provide reasonable assurance about the achievement of 
objectives with regard to reliability of financial reporting, effectiveness and efficiency of 
operations, and compliance with applicable laws and regulations." 

Additionally, Statements on Standards for Attestation Engagements (SSAE) AT501, 03 states: 

"An entity's internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures 
that pertain to an entity's ability to record, process, summarize, and report financial data 
consistent with the assertions embodied in either annual financial statemerrts or interim 
financial statements, or both." 

Cause: The cause of the condition is the fact that the City does not have a sufficient number of staff 
performing administrative and financial duties so as to provide adequate segregation of accounting 
and financial duties. 

Effect: Failure to adequately segre.gate accounting and financial functions increases the risk that errors 
and/or irregularities including fraud and/or defalcations may occur and not be prevented and/or 
detected. 

Recommendation: Due to the size of the operation arid the cost-benefit of additional personnel, it rnay not be 
feasible to achieve complete segregation of duties. 

Response: f t is not cost effective to achieve complete segregation of duties within the accounting function. No 
corrective action is considered necessary. 

Status: 'fhis finding i s repeated as #2023-001. 

#2022-002 Budget Variance 

Condition: The City's actual expenditures in the St, Landry & Acadia Parish Fire District Fund exceeded 
budgeted expenditures by greater than 5%. 
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CITY OF EUNICE, LOUISIANA 

Status of Prior Years Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued) 
Year Ended June 30, 2023 

Criteria: When total actual expenditures exceed total budgeted expenditures by 5% or rnore and/or when 
total revenues fail to meet total budgeted revenues by 5% or more or there has been a change in 
operation upon which the original adopted budget was developed, the City shall adopt a budget 
arnendrnent in an open meeting to reflect such a change. 

Cause: The cause of the condition is that the City did not rnake the necessary amendments to the budget 
prior to the year end. 

Effect: Failure to properly amend the budget results in variances beyond the 5% of budgeted revenues and 
expenses and results in noncompliance with budget laws. 

R.ecommendation: We recommend that the City rnake the necessary amendments to the budget prior to year 
end for changes in revenues and expenditures incurred. 

Response: The City will rnake the necessary amendments to the budget prior to year end for changes in 
estimated expenses. 

Status: This finding is repeated as #2023-002. 

#2022-003 Timely Preparation of Bank Reconciliations  

Condition: The City of Eunice did not reconcile bank accounts on a timely basis. 

Criteria: All bank reconciliations should be prepared on a timely basis, as statements are received from the 
bank. 

Cause: The Clerk was unable to prepare reconciliations in a timely manner due to unexpected circumstances 
arising and a shortage of staff. 

Effect: Untimely preparation of bank reconciliations results in a delay in financial reporting and may also 
allow fraudulent activity to go undetected. 

Recommendation: Bank reconciliations should be prepared on a monthly basis, as statements are available 
from the bank. 

Response: In the future, bank reconciliations will be prepared in a timely manner, as statements are received 
from the bank. 

Status: This finding is repeated as #2022-003 and originated in 2021. 
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CITY OF EUN[CE, LOUISIANA 

Schedule ofCompensation Paid to Members of the Council 

Year Ended June 30, 2023 

Mayor, Scott Fontenot $ 64,8I0 
Germain Simpson 10,719 

Marion Sattler 17,300 

Connie Thibodeaux 10,719 

Chad Andrepont 10,719 

Randall R.eed 7,160 
Ernest Blanchard 3,560 

 

$124,987 
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CITY OF EUNICE, LOUISIANA 

Schedule of Compensation, Benefits and Other Payments 

to Agency Head or Chief Executive Officer 

Year Ended June 30, 2023 

Scott Fontenot, Mayor 

Period: 12 Months 

Salary $64,810 

Benefits retirement 16,64 I 

Bene fas - insurance 6,056 

Cell phone 606 



CITY OF EUNICE, LOUISIANA 
Justice System Funding Schedule - Receiving Entity 
As Required by Act 87 of the 2020 Regular Session 

Cash Basis Presentation 
Year Ended June 30, 2023 

First Six Second Six 
Month Period Month Period 

Ended Ended 

Receipts From: 

12/31/2022 06/30/2023 

  

Eunice City Court, Criminal Fines - Other 2,950 $ 28,173 
Eunice City Court, !fitness Fees 1,285 1,817 
Eunice City Court, Police 200 305 
Subtotal Receipts 4,435 30,295 

Ending F3a1an€e ©f Amounts Assessed but 
Not Received 
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Mayor Scott Fonten 

   

SCOTT A. FONTENOT 
MAYOR 

POST OFFICE DRAWER 1106 
EUNICE LOUISIANA 70535-1106 

vmsv,eunice-la.com 
is-rnai) eunicelaeventsegmajLcom 

IONE (337) 457-1369 
FAX [337] 457-65ee 

CITY OF EUNICE 
E mc-.F., LOUISIANA 

MARION "NOOTSIE" GAT-I-LER 
ALDERMAH AT LARQE 

CHAD ANDREPONT 
WARD 

GERMAINE SIMPSON 
WARD 2 

RANDALL "RANDY" REED 
WARL) 3 

CONNIE THIBODEAUX 
WARD 4 

GINNY MOODY 
are CLERK 

KYLE LEBOUEF 
F OF FoLicE 

V1GE, TUJAGLIE & NOEL, CPA'S 
P. O, ROX 1006 
EUNICE, I,A 70535 

RE: Management Response 

The following are our responses to your recommendations we received in the City's Audited Financial 
Siatement as ot June 30, 2023. 

2023-001 Segregation of Accounting Functions 

A complere segregahon of duties is not feasible due to the costibenerit of hiring additional 
personnel and the size of the City's operations. 

2O3-002 Budge.t Variance 

The. City will make the necessary amendments to the budget prior to year end for changes in 
estimated expenses. 

2021-003 Timely Preparation of Bank Reconeiliatio% 

In (he future, bank reconciliations \yin be prepared in a timely manner;  as statements are received 
from the bank 



CITY OF EUNICE, LOU[SIANA 

STATEWIDE AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES REPORT 

YEAR ENDEDJUNE 30, 2023 



V1GE, TWAGUE NOEL 
A CORPORATION OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

151 N. ato STREET 
P. O. BOX 1O06 

EUNICE. LOUISIANA 70535 
SHIRLEY VIGE, JR., C.PA. TELEPHONE: 
FRANK G. TWAGUE, C.PA 337-457-932.4 
DOMINIQUE M. NOEL. C.P A_ FAX: 

337-457-8743 

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REPORT  
ON APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 

To the Management and Board of Commissioners of the City of Eunice, Louisiana and the 
Louisiana Legislative Auditor: 

We have performed the procedures enumerated below on the control and compliance (C/C) areas 
identified in the Louisiana Legislative Auditor's (LLA's) Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures 
(SAUPs) for the fiscal period July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023. City of Eunice, Louisiana's 
management is responsible for those C/C areas identified in the SAUPs. 

City of Eunice, Louisiana has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures perforrned are 
appropriate to meet the intended purpose of the engagement, which is to perform specified 
procedures on the GC areas identified in LLA's SAUPs for the fiscal period July 1, 2022 through 
June 30, 2023. Additionally, LLA has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures performed 
are appropriate for its purposes. This report may not be suitable for any other purpose. The 
procedures performed may not address all the items of interest to a user of this report and may not 
rneet the needs of allusers ofthis report and, as such, users are responsib]e for determining whether 
the procedures performed are appropriate for their purposes. 

The procedures and associated findings are as follows: 

Wriiten Policies and Procedures 

1, Obtain and inspect the entity's written policies and procedures and observe whether they 
address each of the following categories and subcategories if applicable to public funds and 
the entity's operations: 

a) Budgeting, inc]uding preparing, adopting, monitoring, and amending the budget. 

Written Policies and procedures were obtained and do address the functions noted above.  

b) Purchasing, including (1) how purchases are initiated: (2) how vendors are added to the 
vendor list; (3) the preparation and approval process of purchase requisitions and purchase 
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orders; (4) controls to ensure compliance with the Public Bid Law; and (5) documentation 
required to be maintained for all bids and price quotes. 

Written policies and procedures were obtained and do address the functions noted above.  

c) Disbursements, including processing, reviewing, and approving. 

Written policies and procedures were obtained and do address thc functions noted above.  

d) Recelpis/Collections, including receiving, recording, and preparing deposits. Also, 
policies and procedures should include management's actions to determine the 
completeness of all collections for each type of revenue or agency fund additions (e.g., 
periodic confirmation with outside parties, reconciliation to utility billing after cutoff 
procedures, reconciliation of traffic ticket nurnber sequences, agency fund forfeiture 
monies confirmation). 

Written policies and procedures were obtained and do address the functions noted above.  

e) Payroll/Personnel, including (1) payroll processing, (2) reviewing and approving tirne and 
attendance records, including leave and overtime worked, and (3) approval process for 
employee(s) rate of pay or approval and maintenance of pay rate schedules. 

Written policies and procedures were obtained and do address the functions noted above. 

f) contrading, including (1) types of services requiring written contracts, (2) standard terrns 
and conditions, (3) legal review, (4) approval process, and (5) monitoring process. 

Written policies and procedures were obtained and do address the functions noted above.  

g) Credit Cards (and debit cards,fuel cards, P-Cards, if applicable ), including (1) how cards 
are to be controlled, (2) allowable business uses, (3) documentation requirements, (4) 
required approvers of statements, and (5) monitoring card usage (e.g., determining the 
reasonableness of fuel card purchases). 

Written olicies and urocedures were obtained and do address the functions noted above. 

h) Travel and Expense Reimbursement, including (1) allowable expenses, (2) dollar 
thresholds by category of expense, (3) documentation requirements, and (4) required 
approvers. 

Written policies and procedures were obtained and do address the functions noted above. 

i) Ethics, including (1) the prohibitions as defined in Louisiana Revised Statute (R.S.) 
42:1 l 11-1121, (2) actions to be taken if an ethics violation takes place, (3) system to 
rnonitor possible ethics violations, and (4) a requirement that documentation is maintained 
to demonstrate that all employees and officials were notified ofany changes to the entity's 
ethics policy. 

Written policies and procedures were obtained and do address the functions noted above.  

i) Debt Service, including (1) debt issuance approval, (2) continuing disclosure/EMMA 
reporting requirernents, (3) debt reserve requirements, and (4) debt service requirements. 

Written policies and procedures were obtained and do address the functions noted above.  
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k) Information Technology Disaster 1?ecovery/Business Continuity, including (1) 
identification of critical data and frequency of data backups, (2) storage of backups in a 
separate physical location isolated from the network, (3) periodic testing/verification that 
backups can be restored, (4) use of antivirus software on all systems, (5) timely application 
of all available system and software patches/updates, and (6) identification of personnel, 
processes, and tools needed to recover operations after a critical event. 

vvntten policies and procedures were obtained and do address the tuncitorts noted above. 

Sexual Harassmen.t, including R.S. 42:342-344 requirements for (1) agency 
responsibilities and prohibitions, (2) annual employee training, and (3) annual reporting. 

Written olicies and  procedures were obtained and do address the functions noted above,  

Board (or Finance Committee, if applicable) 

2. Obtain and inspect the board/finance committee minutes for the fiscal period, as well as the 
board's enabling legislation, charter, bylaws, or equivalent docurnent in effect during the fiscal 
period, and: 

a) Observe that the board/finance comrnittee met with a quorurn at least monthly, or on a 
frequency in accordance with the board's enabling legislation, charter, bylaws, or other 
equivalent document. 

Obtained and reviewed minutes of the managing board for the fiscal period noting that the 
board rnet monthly,  

b) For those entities reporting on the governmental accounting model, observe whether the 
minutes referenced or included monthly budget-to-actual comparisons on the general fund, 
quarterly budget-to-actual, at a minimum on proprietary funds, and semi-annual budget-
to-actual, at a minimum, on ail special revenue funds. 

Obtained and reviewed minutes of the in  board for the fiscal period noting that the 
minutes do include monthly budget-to-actual comparisons.  

c) For governmental entities, obtain the prior year audit report and observe the unassigned 
fund balance in the general fund. If the general fund had a negative ending unassigned fund 
balance in the prior year audit report, observe that the rninutes for at least one meeting 
during the fiscal period referenced or included a formal plan to eliminate the negative 
unassigned fund balance in the general fund. 

Obtained the prior year audit report and observed that the unassigned fund balance was a 
positive balance.  

d) Observe whether the board/finance comm ittee received written updates of the progress of resolving 
audit findings), according to management's corrective action plan at each meeting until the 
findings are considered fully resolved. 
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The hoard did not receive written updates of the progress of resolving audit findings at each 
meetinft. 

Bank Reconciliations 

3. Obtain a listing or entity bank accounts for the fiscal period from managernent and 
management's representation that the listing is complete. Ask management to identify the 
entity's main operating account. Select the entity's main operating account and randomly 
select 4 additional accounts (or all accounts if less than 5). Randomly select one month frorn 
the fiscal period, obtain and inspect the corresponding bank statement and reconciliation for 
each selected account, and observe that: 

a) Bank reconciliations include evidence that they were prepared within 2 months of the 
related statement closing date (e.g., initialed and dated or electronically logged); 

Bank reconciliations were not prgared within 2 months of the related statement closing 
date. 

b) Ban.k reconciliations include evidence that a member of management/board member who 
does not handle cash, post ledgers, or issue checks has reviewed each bank reconciliation 
(e.g., initialed and dated, electronically logged); and 

Bank reconciliations do not include evidence that a .member of management who does not 
handle cash, post ledgers, or issue checks has reviewed each reconciliation.  

c) Management has documentation reflecting it has researched reconciling items that have 
been outstanding for more than 12 months from the statement closing date, if applicable, 

Bank reconciliations do not include evidence that managernent has researched reconciling, 
items that have been outstanding for more than 12 months from the statement closing date.  

collections (excluding electronic funds transfers)      

4. Obtain a listing, of deposit sites for the fiscal period where deposits for cash/checks/money 
orders (cash) are prepared and management's representation that the listing is complete. 
Randomly select 5 deposit sites (or all deposit sites if less than 5). 

Obtained a listing of deposit sites frorn management and management provided representation  
that the listing is complete.  

5. For each deposit site selected, obtain a listing of collection locations and management's 
representation that the listing is cornplete. Randomly select one collection location for each 
deposit site (i.e., 5 collection locations for 5 deposit sites), obtain and inspect written policies 
and procedures relating to employee job duties (if no written policies or procedures, inquire of 
employees about their job duties) at each collection location, and observe that job duties are 
properly segregated at each collection location such that: 

a) Employees responsible for cash collections do not share cash drawers/registers. 
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Ernployees responsible for cash collections do share cash drawers/registers.  

b) Each ernployee responsible for collecting cash is not responsible for preparing/making 
bank deposits, unless another employee/official is responsible for reconciling collection 
documentation (e.g., pre-numbered receipts) to the deposit. 

Ernployees res onsible for collectinp cash are not responsible for greparinglxnakin bank 
deposits. Each employees collections arc reconciled by another employee daily.  

c) Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not responsible for posting collection 
entries to the general ledger or subsidiary ledgers, unless another employee/official is 
responsible for reconciling ledger postings to each other and to the deposit. 

Employees responsible for collecting cash are responsible for osting collection entries to 
the Reneral ledger or subsidiary ledgsr. The clerk reconciles the postings to each other and  
the deposit. 

d) The employee(s) responsible for reconciling cash collections to the general ledger and/or 
subsidiary ledgers, by revenue source andlor agency fund additions, are not responsible for 
collecting cash, unless another employee/official verifies the reconciliation. 

Employees responsible for collecting cash are not responsible for reconciling cash  
collections to the general ledger.  

G. Obtain from management a copy of the bond or insurance policy for theft covering an 
employees who have access to cash. Obscrve the bond or insurance policy for theft was 
enforced during the fiscal period. 

Emplovees who have access to cash are covered by the bond or insurance policy for theft.  

7. Randomly select two deposit dates for each of the 5 bank accounts selected for procedure 43 
under "Bank Reconciliations" above (select the next deposit date chronologically if no deposits 
were made on the dates randornly selected and randomly select a deposit if multiple deposits 
are made on the same day). Alternately, the practitioner may use a source document other 
than bank statements when selecting the deposit dates for testing, such as a cash collection 
log, daily revenue report, receipt book, etc. Obtain supporting docurnentation for each of the 
10 deposits and: 

a) Observe that receipts are sequentially pre-numbered. 

Observed that receipts are sequentially pre-nurnbered.  

b) Trace sequentially pre-numbered receipts, system reports, and other related collection 
documentation to the deposit slip. 

Traced receias or collection documentation to the deposit slip with no exceptions.  

c) Trace the deposit slip total to the actual deposit per the bank statement. 

Traced the deposit slip total to the actual deposit per the bank statement with no exceptions. 

d) Observe the deposit was made within one business day of receipt at the collection location 
(within one week if the depository is more than 10 miles from the collection location or the 
deposit is less than $100 and the cash is stored securely iri a locked safe or drawer). 
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Observed that deposits were not rnade within one business dav of receipt at the collection 
location.  

e) Trace the actual dcposit per the bank statement to the general ledger. 

Traced the actual deposits per the bank statement to the general ledger noting no  
exceptions.  

Non-Payroll Disbursements — General (excluding card purchases/payments, travel 

reinthursements, and petty cash purchases) 

8. Obtain a listing of locations that process payments for the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 locations (or all locations if less 
than 5). 

Obtained aglistin of locations that process pa ments for the fiscal period and rnang.gernent's 
representation that the listing is complete.  

9. For each location selected under #8 above, obtain a listing of those employees involved with 
non-payroll purchasing and payment functions. Obtain mitten policies and procedures 
relating to employee job duties (if the agency has no written policies and procedures, inquire 
of employees about their job duties), and observe that job duties are properly segregated such 
that 

a) At least two employees are involved in initiating a purchase request, approving a purchase, 
and placing an order/making the purchase. 

Obtained written policies and procedures and observed that job duties are properly 
segregated reggding the functions noted above.  

b) At least two employees are involved in processing and approving payrnents to vendors. 

Obtained written policies and proeedures and observed that job duties are properly  
segregated regarding the functions noted aboye. 

c) The employee responsible for processing payments is prohibited from addinghnodifying 
vendor files, unless another employee is responsible for periodically reviewing changes to 
vendor files. 

{3btained written policies and procedures and observed that job duties are properly  
segregated regarding the functions noted above.  

d} Either the employee/official responsible for signing checks mails the payment or gives the 
signed checks to an employee to rnail who is not responsible for processing payments. 

Obtained written olicies and procedures and observed that iob duties arl_properly  
segregated regarding the functions noted above. 

10. For cach location selected under #8 above, obtain the entity's non-payroll disbursement 
transaction population (excluding cards and travel reimbursements) and obtain management's 
representation that the population is complete. Randomly select 5 disbursements for each 
location, obtain supporting documentation for each transaction, and: 
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a) Observe whcther the disbursement matched the re]ated original itemized invoice and 
supporting documentation indicates deliverables included on the invoice were received by 
the entity. 

Qbserved that the disbursernents matched the related original itemized invoice and the 
supporting documentation indicates deliverables included on the invoiee were received.  

b) Observe whether the disbursement documentation included evidence (e.g., initial/date, 
electronic logging) of segregation of duties tested under 49, as applicable. 

Observed that the disbursement documentation included evidence o f segregation of duties 
tested.  

1 1 Using the entity's main operating account and the month selected in Bank Reconciliations 
procedure #3A, randomly select 5 non-payroll-related electronic disbursements (or all 
electronic disbursements if less than 5) and observe that each electronic disbursement was (a) 
approved by only those persons authorized to disburse funds (e.g., sign checks) per the entity's 
policy, and (b) approved by the required nurnber of authorized signers per the entity's policy. 
Note: lf no electronic payrnents were made from the main operating account during the rnonth 
selected the practitioner should select an alternative month and/or account for testing that does 
include electronic disbursements. 

Observed that electronic disbursements are approved by authorized persons.  

Credit Cards/Debit cards/Fuel Cards/P-Cards 

l 2. Obtain from management a listing of all active credit cards, bank debit cards, fuel cards, and 
P-cards (cards) for the fiscal period, including the card numbers and the narnes of the persons 
who maintained possession of the cards. Obtain management's representation that the listing 
is complete, 

Obtained a listing o€ all active credit cards and management's representation that the listing is 
complete.  

13, Using the listing prepared by rnanagernent, randornly select 5 cards (or all cards if less than 5) 
that were used during the fiscal period. Randomly select one rnonthly statement or combined 
statement for each card (for a debit card, randomly select one rnonthly bank statement), obtain 
supporting documentation, and: 

a) Observe whether there is evidence that the rnonthly statement or combined statement and 
supporting docurnentation (e.g., original receipts for credit/debit card purchases, exception 
reports for excessive fuel card usage) were reviewed and approved, in writing (or 
electronically approved), by someone other than the authorized card holder. 

No exceptions noted.  

b) Observe that finance charges and late fees were not assessed on the selected statements, 
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No exceptions rioted on the selected statements. , 

14. Using the rnonthly statements or combined statements selected under #12 above, excluding 
fuel cards. randomly select 10 transactions (or all transactions if less than 10) from each 
statement, and obtain supporting documentation for the transactions (i.e., each card should 
have 10 transactions subject to testing). For each transaction, observe it is supported by (1) an 
original itemized receipt that identifes precisely what was purchased, (2) written 
documentation of the business/public purpose, and (3) docurnentation of the individuals 
participating in meals (for meal charges only). For rnissing receipts, the practitioner should 
describe the nature of the transaction and note whether management had a compensating 
control to address missing receipts, such as a "missing receipt statement" that is subject to 
increased scrutiny. 

No excpptions noted.  

Travel and Travel-Rekited Expense Reimbursements (excluding card transactions) 

15.Obtain from rnanagement a listing of all travel and travel-related expense reimbursements 
during the fiscal period and management's representation that the listing or general ledger is 
complete, Randomly select 5 reimbursements, obtain the related expense reimbursement 
forrns/prepaid expense documentation of each selected reimbursernent, as well as the 
supporting documentation. For each of the 5 reirnbursements selected: 

Obtained a listin  of all travel and travel-related ex ense reimbursements an€1 mana ement's 
representation that the listing is complete.  

a) If reimbursed using a per diem, observe the approved reimbursement rate is no more than 
those rates established either by the State of Louisiana or the U.S. General Services 
Administration (www,gsa.gov), 

No exceptions noted.  

b) If reirnbursed using actual costs, observe the reimbursernent is supported by an original 
itemized receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased. 

No exceptions noted.  

c) Observe each reirnbursernent is supported by docurnentation of the business/public 
purpose (for rneal charges, observe that the docurnentation includes the names of those 
individuals participating) and other documentation required by written policy (procedure 
#1 h). 

No exceptions noted.  
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d) Observe each reimbursement was reviewed and approved, in writing, by someone other 
than the person recciving reimbursement. 

No exceptions noted.  

Contracts      

16. Obtain From managern€nt a listing of al) agreements/contracts for professional services, 
materials and supplies, leases, and construction activities that were initiated or renewed during 
the fiscal period. Alternately, the practitioner may use an equivalent selection source, such as 
an active vendor list. Obtain management's representation that the listing is complete, 
Randomly select 5 contracts (or all contracts if less than 5) frorn the listing, excluding the 
practitioner's contract, and: 

a) Observe whether the contract was bid in accordance with the Louisiana Public Bid Law 
(e.g., solicited quotes or bids, advertised), if required by law. 

Observed that the contracts were not required to be bid in accordance with the Louisiana  
Public Bid Law.  

b) Observe whether the contract was approved by the governing body/board, if required by 
policy or law (e.g., Lawrason Act, Home Rule Charter). 

Observed that the contracts were approved by the board., 

c) lf the contract was aniended (e.g., change order), observe the original contract terms 
provided for such an arnendment and that amendments were rnade in compliance with the 
contract terrns (e.g., if approval is required for any amendment, was approval documented). 

Observed that amendments were made in compliance with the contract terms. 

d) Randomly select one payment from the fiscal period for each of the 5 contracts, obtain the 
supporting invoice, agree the invoice to the contract terms, and observe the invoice and 
related payment agreed to the terms and conditions of the contract. 

Randornlv selected one payment from each of the contracts t€;sted, and observed that the 
invoice and pa ment a reed to tlle terms and conditions of the contract.  

Payroll and Personnel 

17. Obtain a listing of employees and officials employed during the fiscal period and 
management's representation that the listing is complete. Randornly select 5 employees or 
officials, obtain related paid salaries and personnel files, and agree paid salaries to authorized 
salaries/pay rates in the personnel files. 

Obtained a listing of emplpyees and officials employed during. the fiscal period_ and 
management provided representation that the listing is complete. Randomly selected 5 
e_rmloyees and agreed paicl salaries to authorized salaries/pay rates in the personnel files.  
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18. Randomly select one pay period during the fiscal period. For the 5 employees or officials 
selected under 416 above, obtain attendance records and leave documentation for the pay 
period, and: 

a) Observe all selected employees or officials documented their daily attendance and leave 
(e.g., vacation, sick, cornpensatory). (Note: Generally, officials are not eligible to earn 
leave and do not document their attendance and leave. However, if the official is earning 
leave according to a policy and/or contract, the official should document his/her daily 
attendance and leave.) 

Observed that all selected emsloyees documented their daily attendance and leave.  

b) Observe whether supervisors approved the attendance and leave of the selected employees 
or officials. 

Observed that supervisors approved the attendance and leave of the selected employees.  

c) Observe any leave accrued or taken during the pay period is reflected in the entity's 
cumulative leave records. 

Observed that leave accrued and taken durink the pay period is refiected in the cumulative 
leave records.  

d) Observe the rate paid to the ernployees or officials agree to the authorized salary/pay rate 
found within the personnel file. 

Observed that the rate paid to employees aRrees to the authorized salary/pay rate found 
within the  ersonnel  

19. Obtain a listing of those ernployees or officials that received termination payments during the 
fiscal period and management's representation that the list is complete. Randomly select two 
employees or officials, obtain related documentation of the hours and pay rates used in 
management's termination payment calculations and the entity's policy on terrnination 
payments. Agree the hours to the employee or officials' cumulative leave records, agree the 
pay rates to the employee or officials' authorized pay rates in the employee or officials' 
personnd files, and agree the terrnination payment to entity policy. 

No exceptions noted.  

20. Obtain management's representation that employer and employee portions of third-party 
payroll related amounts (e.g., payroll taxes, retirement contributions, health insurance 
premiums, garnishments, workers' cornpensation prerniums, etc.) have been paid, and any 
associated forrns have been filed, by required deadlines. 

Management provided representation that employer and ernployee portions of third-party 
payroll related amounts have been paid, and any associated forms have been filed, by required 
deadlines.  
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Ethics 

21. Using the 5 randornly selected employees/officials from procedure 416 under "Payroll and 
Personnel" above' obtain ethics documentation from rnanagernent, and: 

a. Observe whether the documentation demonstrates each employee/official completed one 
hour of ethics training during the fiscal period, 

Three out of five employees selected for testing did not complete the one hour of ethics  
training.  

b. Observe whether the entity maintains documentation which demonstrates each ernployee 
and official were notified of any changes to the entity's ethics policy during the fiscal 
period, as applicable. 

There were no changes made to the entity's ethics policy during the fiscal year.  

Debt Service 

22. Obtain a listing of bonds/notes and other debt instrurnents issued during the fiscal period and 
management's representation that the listing is complete. Select all debt instrurnents on the 
listing, obtain supporting, documentation, and observe State Bond Commission approval was 
obtained for each debt instrument issued. 

Management has asserted that the Entity did not have any debt issued during the fiscal year.  

23. Obtain a listing of bonds/notes outstanding at the end of the fiscal period arid management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select one bond/note, inspect debt 
covenants, obtain supporting documentation for the reserve balance and payments, and agree 
actual reserve balances and payments to those required by debt covenants (including 
contingency funds, short-lived asset funds, or other funds required by the debt covenants). 

There were no bonds/notes outstanding during the fiscal vear.  

Fraud Notke 

24. Obtain a listing of misappropriations of public funds and assets during the fiscal period and 
management's representation that the listing is complete. Select all misappropriations on the 
listing, obtain, supporting docurnentation, and observe that the entity reported the 
misappropriation(s) to the legislative auditor and the district attorney of the parish in which the 
entity is dorniciled. 

Management has asserted that  the Entity did not have any misappropriations of public funds  
or assets during the reporting period.  

25. Observe the entity has posted, on its premises and website, the notice required by R.S. 24:523.1 
concerning the reporting of misappropriation, fraud, waste, or abuse of public funds. 
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Observed that the entity has posted on its premises, the required notice.  

Information Technology Disaster Recovery/Business Continuity 

26. Perforrn the following procedures, verbally discuss the results with management, and 
report "We performed the procedure and discussed the results with management." 

a) Obtain and inspect the entity's rnost recent documentation that it has backed up its 
critical data (if no wrinen documentation, inquire of personnel responsible for backing 
up critical data) and observe that such backup occurred within the past week. If 
backups are stored on a physical medium (e,g., tapes, CDs), observe evidence that 
backups are encrypted before being transported. 

We performed the procedure and discussed the results with management. 

b) Obtain and inspect the entity's most recent documentation that it has tested/verified 
that its backups can be restored (if no written documentation, inquire of personnel 
responsible for testing/verifying backup restoration) and observe evidence that the 
test/verification was successfully perforrned within the past 3 months. 

We performed the procedure and discussed the results with rnana ement. 

c) Obtain a listing of the entity's computers currently in use and their related locations, 
and management's representation that the listing is cornplete. Randomly select 5 
computers and observe while rnanagement demonstrates that the selected computers 
have current and active antivirus software and that the operating system and accounting 
systern software in use are currently supported by (he vendor. 

We performed the procedure and discussed the results with management.  

Sexual Harassment 

26. Using the 5 randomly selected employees/officials from procedure 016 under "Payroll and 
Personnel" above, obtain sexual harassment training documentation from management, and 
observe the documentation demonstrates each employee/official completed at least one hour 
of sexual harassment training during the calendar year. 

Three of the five employees selected for testing did not complete the _required sexual  
harassment training, 

27, Observe the entity has posted its sexual harassment policy and complaint procedure ou its 
website (or in a conspicuous location on the entity's premises if the entity does not have a 
website). 

Observed that the entity has posted its sexual harassment policy and complaint procedure on 
the entity's prernises.  
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28. Obtain the entity's annual sexual harassment report for the current fiscal period, observe that 
the report was dated on or before February l, and observe it includes the applicable 
requirements of R.S. 42:344: 

Management did not prepare the annual sexual harassment report.; however, management 
stated that there were no sexual harassment complaints.  

a) Number and percentage of public servants in the agency who have completed the 
training requirements; 

b) Number of sexual harassment complaints received by the agency; 
c) Number of complaints which resulted in a finding that sexual harassrnent occurred; 
d) Number of complaints in which the finding of sexual harassment resulted in discipline 

or corrective action; and 
e) Amount of time it took to resolve each complaint. 

Management's Response 

Management of the Citv of Eunice, Louisiana concurs with the exceiations and is working 
to address the deficiencies identified. 

We were engaged by City of Eunice, Louisiana to perform this agreed-upon procedures 
engagement and conducted our engagement i n accordance with attestation standards established by 
the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and applicable standards of Government 
Auditing Standards. We were not engaged to and did not conduct an examination or review 
engagement, the objective of which would be the expression of an opinion or conclusion, 
respectively, on those C/C areas identified in the SAUPs. Accordingly, we do not express such an 
opinion or conclusion. Had we performed additional procedures, other matters might have come 
to our attention that would have been reported to you. 

We are required to be independent of City of Eunice, Louisiana and to rneet our other ethical 
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements related to our agreed-upon 
procedures engagement. 

This report is intended solely to describe the scope of testing performed on those C/C areas 
identified in the SAUPs, and the result of that testing, arid not to provide an opinion on control or 
compliance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. Under Louisiana 
Reviscd Statute 24:513, this rcport is distributed by the LLA as a public docurnent. 

Vige, Tujague el 
Eunice, Louisiana 
December 19,, 2023 
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